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WILLIAM H ABBEY   CURTIS ABBOTT   DONNIE L ABBOTT   SAMUEL D ABERNATHY   STEVEN CHAD ABERNATHY   DAVID J ABLER   CATHERINE ABNEY   LORENZO ABRAHAM   FREDERICK M ABRASSART   DENNIS J ACKER   DONALD E ACKER   REX ANTHONY ACKER   
RICHARD K ACKERMAN   RANDY L ACKLEY   RONALD T ACKLEY   CHARLES ACKLEY JR   GLEN D ACKLIE   LEE G ACKLIE   CREST ADAIR   JASON DALTON ADAIR   ANGELO M ADAMS   BRENT W ADAMS   DANIEL B ADAMS   DOUGLAS B ADAMS   DOUGLAS E ADAMS   
ERIC ADAMS   EZRA G ADAMS   GREGG T ADAMS   JAMES MICHEAL ADAMS   JEROMY W ADAMS   JON R ADAMS   KRISTINE ANN ADAMS   LORNE A ADAMS   MARY J ADAMS   MICHAEL S ADAMS   RANDALL COREY ADAMS   REBECCAH C ADAMS   ROB ADAMS   
STEVE PHIL ADAMS   TERRY W ADAMS   TIMOTHY J ADAMS   TRACY L ADAMS   WILLIAM ADDO   TYLER D ADER   WILLIAM D ADER   THOMAS WILLIAM ADESSA   HANSON MARK ADJEI-SARPONG   CHARLEY ADKINS   RODNEY R ADKINS   JERRY R ADRIAN   
TRAVIS L AESCHLIMAN   FRANCISCO J AGBUNAG   HILARIO AGUILAR   BALTAZAR AGUIRRE   ROJELIO AGUIRRE   STEVEN R AGUIRRE   WILLIE AGUIRRE JR   ARNE AHLEMANN   JOEL R AHRENHOLTZ   DAVID A AIUTO   PAMELA A AJOLOKO   GLENN W AKER   
SHAWN E AKER   JERRY D AKERS   RONALD L AKERS   DEAN C AKEY   DARRELL C AKINS   ROBERT R AKINS   NOE ALAMBAR   RICHARD L ALANIZ   GREGORY K ALBERS   REGINA ALBERTSON   CHRISTOPHER P ALBRECHT   MICHAEL T ALBRECHT   RANDY L ALBRECHT   
SCOT D ALBRECHT   TRAVIS A ALBRIGHT   GREGORY GENE ALDER   KENNETH E ALDER   ROBERT A ALDER   ZANE ALDER   LYNN DAVID ALDRICH   SCOTT C ALDRICH   JEREMY T ALDRIDGE   LAMON F ALDRIDGE   ROBERT B ALDRIDGE   ROBERT W ALDRIDGE   
ANTHONY E ALEXANDER   ARLEY W ALEXANDER   BRIAN S ALEXANDER   CHRIS ROGER ALEXANDER   JOSHUA J ALEXANDER   JUREK C ALEXANDER   KENNETH ALEXANDER   MATTHEW E ALEXANDER   PHILIP B ALEXANDER   ROBERT B ALEXANDER   
ROBERT P ALEXANDER   RONALD A ALEXANDER   THOMAS ALEXANDER   THOMAS A ALEXANDER   TIMOTHY L ALEXANDER   VANCE N ALEXANDER   CHERYL ALEXIS-MINGOES   JONATHAN ALFORD   JUSTIN M ALFORD   LARRY ALFORD   MONTY ALFORD   
MONTY ALFORD JR   ROBERT D ALFORD   ROGER N ALFORD   DON D ALFORD JR   KEVIN ALFRED   DANIEL ALGAR   KICHELLE SASHA ALI   CYNTHIA E ALLBRITTON   DONALD R ALLBRITTON   BLAINE D ALLEN   BRIAN J ALLEN   BRUCE W ALLEN   CHARLES M ALLEN   
FRANCIS ALLEN   HENRY E ALLEN   JAMES ALLEN   JEFFERY D ALLEN   JEFFERY D ALLEN   JERRY MASON ALLEN   JIMMY E ALLEN   JOHN ALLEN   JOHN KENNETH ALLEN   JON E ALLEN   JONATHAN ALLEN   JOSHUA D ALLEN   JUDE ALLEN   KENNETH L ALLEN   
KEVIN J ALLEN   KEVIN N ALLEN   LLOYD R ALLEN   MARK L ALLEN   MARY S ALLEN   MICHAEL C ALLEN   NANCY ALLEN   NATHANIAL H ALLEN   NEVADA J ALLEN   PAUL M ALLEN   ROBERT L ALLEN   ROBIN D ALLEN   SETH D ALLEN   TOMMY O ALLEN   TONY D ALLEN   
WILLIAM K ALLEN   DAVID E ALLEN JR   TRACY D ALLEN-SPARKS   EDMUND R ALLER   DOUGLAS E ALLEY   MARK K ALLIGOOD   LESLIE L ALLISON   MICHAEL ALLISON   SCOTT W ALLMENDINGER   JOSEPH P ALLMON   GEORGE B ALLRED   JACOB S ALLSOP   
DUDLEY M ALPHA   SHANNON RAY ALSPACH   MICHAEL O ALTMAN   ALLEN L ALTSTADT   ROBERT J ALTWINE   TERRY G ALTWINE   SCOTT M ALUMBAUGH   MIKE S ALVAREZ   DEVERN G ALVORD   J BROOK ALVORD   CHRISTOPHER P AMBROSE   DAVID A AMBROSE   
JAMES R AMBROSE   JAMES J AMBROZ   KATHY AMENT   JAMES AMES   LISA KAY AMES   CRAIG M AMEY   JARRAD T AMICK   ROGER A AMSTUTZ   HOWARD S ANDERS   CHRIS L ANDERSEN   ELAINE ANDERSEN   GARY L ANDERSEN   RODNEY L ANDERSEN   
ALBERT A ANDERSON   ANTHONY A ANDERSON   ANTHONY R ANDERSON   BETTY L ANDERSON   BLAKE ANDERSON   BRADY L ANDERSON   BRENT L ANDERSON   BRIAN S ANDERSON   CHARLES E ANDERSON   CHRIS D ANDERSON   CHRIS J ANDERSON   
CHRIS L ANDERSON   CRAIG L ANDERSON   CRAIG N ANDERSON   DALE ANDERSON   DANIEL N ANDERSON   DAVID ANDERSON   DAVID A ANDERSON   DAVID L ANDERSON   DENNIS LEE ANDERSON   DUSTIN R ANDERSON   EDWARD E ANDERSON   EMMETT ANDERSON   
ERIC D ANDERSON   ERIC J ANDERSON   GERALD D ANDERSON   GERALD R ANDERSON   JAMES A ANDERSON   JAMES D ANDERSON   JAMES N ANDERSON   JAMES WILLIAM ANDERSON   JERIMY R ANDERSON   JESS L ANDERSON   JIM H ANDERSON   
JOHN E ANDERSON   JOHN M ANDERSON   JOHN PAUL ANDERSON   JOHN W ANDERSON   JOHNATHAN A ANDERSON   JOSHUA L ANDERSON   KEITH ANDERSON   KENNETH W ANDERSON   KEVIN D ANDERSON   LENNERT ANDERSON   MARINETTE R ANDERSON   
NATHAN E ANDERSON   PATRICK J ANDERSON   PAUL ANDERSON   RICHARD E ANDERSON   RYAN W ANDERSON   SHAWN M ANDERSON   SHAWN M ANDERSON   STEVEN J ANDERSON   STEVEN K ANDERSON   THOMAS C ANDERSON   THOMAS COLEMAN ANDERSON   
WILLIAM E ANDERSON   EDWARD B ANDERSON JR   EDWARD D ANDERSON JR   THOMAS EDWARD ANDERSON JR   STEPHEN P ANDREASEN   RICK ANDRES   BILL G ANDREWS   CHARLES A ANDREWS   JAIME A ANDREWS   MICHAEL V ANDREWS   SCOTT A ANDREWS   
WILLIAM H ANDREWS   TIMOTHY A ANDRUS   ELENA ANGHEL   JAMES ANGLIN   LAWRENCE J ANGOTTI   PATRICIA DIANN ANGOTTI   BARRY M ANNALORA   CORY ANSLEY   SUSAN L ANTHONY   EDWIN M ANTICI   WAYNE AOKI   LEANTHONY APONTE   TODD APPLE   
W L APPLE   VIRGINIA EILEEN APPLEBEE   DARRELL W APPLEGATE   BROCK CHADWICK APPLETON   JOHN E ARCEMENT   RODERICK ARCENEAUX   JERRY D ARCHER   RICHARD T ARCHER   CURTIS B ARCHIBALD   CAROL G ARD   JEFFREY W ARD   MICKEY D ARDERY   
DAMON E ARDIS   MARK A ARDUSER   BRIAN A ARENS   BRIAN J ARENS   INGE A ARENS   SHAWN M ARENS   BRANDON K ARGO   THOMAS E ARLEDGE   FRANCISCO ARMENTA   BRANDT L ARMSTRONG   MARY M ARMSTRONG   ANDREW ARNOLD   JACOB R ARNOLD   
LARRY L ARNOLD   NICHOLAS M ARNOLD   PAUL H ARNOLD   WILLIAM E ARNOLD   EDWARD ARNOLD JR   GEORGE ARNT   ROWANTA XAVIER ARRINGTON   ANTHONY B ARTAGAME   OTTO E ARTFITCH   LEON ARTIS   QUINCY ASAY   KEITH V ASBELL   SEAN C ASBELL   
WARREN K ASBURY   MARK A ASBY   BRIAN M ASCHLEMAN   JASON D ASHBY   MATTHEW GRAYSON ASHBY   RUSTY S ASHBY   RUSTY S ASHBY JR   BERT REEDER ASHCROFT   ZACHARY H ASHCROFT   KELVIN D ASHE   JERRY L ASHLEY   MATTHEW HARRELL ASHLEY   
THOMAS H ASHLEY   DARWIN L ASHLIMAN   RONALD ASHWORTH   JOSEF ASKEW   ROBERT R ASKEW   SCOTT S ASKEW   WILLIAM M ASKEW   WILLIAM TONY ASKEW   TIMOTHY R ASMUS   DAN ATKIN   KENNETH ATKINS   WILLIAM M ATKINS   ISOM ATKINS JR   
JEANETTE H ATKINSON   RICKY L ATKINSON   ZENOS ATMORE   ALEXANDER ATOIAN   JEFFERY B AUBURGER   ROBERT AUCONE   JAMES P AUGUSTIN   CHARLES R AULT   RAYMOND E AULTMAN   JOHN A AUMAN   ERIC L AUSTIN   HERSHEL W AUSTIN   
JAMES K AUSTIN   JASON S AUSTIN   JOEL D AUSTIN   JOSEPH R AUSTIN   PHILLIP AUSTIN   RICKY C AUSTIN   ROBERT AUSTIN   SCOTT D AUSTIN   SHAWN H AUSTIN   THOMAS E AUSTIN   JEREMIAH AUVINEN   JOSE G AVALOS   EDWARD M AVAU   GARY WAYNE AVERETTE   
RICARDO A AVERION   MICHAEL S AVERITT   GARY E AVERY   PATRICK JEROME AVERY   RANDY R AVERY   STEVEN BRIAN AVERY   RYAN J AXFORD   GEORGE T AYCOCK   BRIAN C AYER   SPENCER K AYERS   MOHAMMED AZEEM   ERIC G BABCOCK   
KEVIN M BABCOCK   MARCUS K BABER   PHILLIP BACH   MATTHEW D BACHMAN   RICKY L BACHMANN   JOHN R BACK III   LEON D BACKSTROM   GREGORY R BACKUS   ADRIANE M BACON   KEVIN E BACON   LONNIE BACON   TERRY A BACOTE   JASON BAER   
ROGER B BAER   AMY C BAGGETTE   GERALD E BAGGOTT   JERZY BAGINSKI   ANTHONY BAGLEY   ROBERT C BAGLEY   ANTHONY L BAHENA   JAMES M BAHM   CHARLES A BAILEY   CHRIS V BAILEY   DALE E BAILEY   DARRELL BAILEY   DAVID W BAILEY   
EDWARD M BAILEY   FRANK BAILEY   GEORGE BAILEY   GREGORY DEWAYNE BAILEY   JIMMY J BAILEY   LARAMIE S BAILEY   LARRY C BAILEY   MICHAEL D BAILEY   MICHAEL D BAILEY   MICHAEL L BAILEY   NATHAN D BAILEY   PEGGY L BAILEY   RALPH S BAILEY   
RANDY S BAILEY   ROBERT W BAILEY   WAYMON BAILEY   TERRY D BAINE   ROBERT R BAINES   STEVEN R BAIR JR   JOSHUA C BAIRD   MARTHA GRIFFIN BAIRD   AARON C BAKER   ANDREA R BAKER   ANTHONY E BAKER   BARRY A BAKER   BRUCE BAKER   
DANNY BAKER   GAYLEN B BAKER   GENSIE J BAKER   IRA J BAKER   JARRIOD B BAKER   JASON R BAKER   JEREMIE M BAKER   JERRY L BAKER   JOHN R BAKER   JOHN TIMOTHY BAKER   KENNETH M BAKER   KENT L BAKER   LEA BAKER   LEONARD BAKER   
MARSHA K BAKER   MARTIN BAKER   MICHAEL E BAKER   PHILLIP A BAKER   SCOTT R BAKER   SHARON S BAKER   WADE BAKER   WILLIAM R BAKER   WILLIS BAKER JR   CESAR BALDERAS   DEWAUN L BALDWIN   ISAAC E BALDWIN   JOHNNIE L BALDWIN   
THOMAS D BALDWIN   ROBERT LEE BALDWIN JR   CHARLES BALL   HEATHER D BALL   MICHAEL J BALL   MICHAEL S BALL   STEVEN D BALL   TIMOTHY J BALL   JOHNNY J BALL JR   JOHNNY J BALL SR   DAVID BALLARD   IRVING E BALLARD   JERRY D BALLARD   
MARY  ELLEN BALLARD   TEX J BALLARD   JOSEPH A BALOTTI   SHANNON L BALTAZAR   RUSSELL J BALVIN   CRAIG M BANDUR   RANDALL BANDY   CHARLES E BANKS   JOHNNY L BANKS   PERRY R BANKS   ROBERT R BANKS   WILLIAM E BANKS   WILLIAM T BANKS   
WILLIE CORNELL BANKS   OCTAVIS BANKS III   WALTER BANKS JR   CHRISTOPHER R BANKSTON   JEFFERY O BANKSTON   LARRY BANKSTON   ROBERT MICHAEL BARANSKA   WARREN E BARBEE   JASON S BARBER   BRIAN L BARBERY   JERRY BARCLAY   
JON BARCLAY   BART R BARDWELL   THOMAS EDMUND BARELA   ALBERT W BARFIELD   JOHN K BARFUSS   SHELDON D BARFUSS   CHARLES E BARGER   DEWEY L BARGER   TYLER M BARGER   JOHNNY M BARGESSER   MATTHEW D BARGSTADT   DOUGLAS W BARKER   
HAL G BARKER   JOSEPH A BARKER   RUSSELL W BARKER   TIMOTHY J BARKER   JOHNNY G BARKLEY   JEFFREY P BARKMAN   CHARLIE O BARKS   KEVIN E BARKSDALE   MICHAEL S BARKSDALE   ERIC PAUL BARNER   ROBERT J BARNER   ALFRED BARNES   
ANDREW R BARNES   JAMES E BARNES   JOEY DAVID BARNES   KENNETH E BARNES   KENNETH R BARNES   TRAVIS BARNES   WILLIAM H BARNES   EDWARD BARNES JR   JAMES M BARNETT   JASPER BARNETT   JOSEPH E BARNETT   RONALD L BARNETT   
MICHAEL BARNETT JR   DONALD BARNEY   KEN E BARNHART   ROGER L BARNHART   KENNETH E BARNHILL   MELEAH L BARNHILL   SANDRA L BARNHILL   BRENT L BARR   WESLEY E BARRENTINE   CHRISTOPHER L BARRETT   WALTER E BARRINEAU   
LAURICE R BARRINEAU JR   CHARLES A BARRINGTON   WILLIAM GABRIEL BARRINGTON   TIM J BARRITT   CHAD R BARRON   JASON DERRICK BARRON   KEITH BARRON   ANDREW C BARROWS   JAMES BARRS   ROBERT J BARRY   KENNETH A BARTANEN   
BRYAN C BARTLETT   CHRISTOPHER D BARTLETT   JEREMY L BARTLETT   ROGER D BARTLETT   ROY L BARTLETT   ROLAND G BARTLEY   ELNORRIS BARTON   DARRON H BARTOS   BRIAN K BARTROM   CHARLES E BARWEGEN   JESSICA S BASHORE   
RANDALL L BASHORE JR   ANTHONY R BASS   DAVID E BASS   DONNIE L BASS   JOHN R BASS   JAMES R BASSETT   JOHN C BASSETT   JONATHAN M BASSETT II   JASON L BASSHAM   TRAVIS L BATCHLER   DAVID A BATENHORST   ANGELA M BATES   DANIEL D BATES   
JAMES BATES   JOHNNY H BATES   RONALD D BATES   RONNIE L BATES   LEE W BATESOLE   MELVIN JASON BATSON   THOMAS J BATTERBEE   WILLIAM H BATTISTE III   GREGORY S BATTLES   SUSAN J BATTS   JOHN BATY   JOHN FRANKLIN BATY   ADAM J BAUER   
BRETT C BAUER   JEFFERY E BAUER   QUENTIN G BAUER   TREVOR T BAUER   STANLEY W BAUGH   GARY G BAUGHAN   FRANKLIN A BAUGHMAN   LARRY E BAUMAN   BLAKE D BAUMANN   SARA J BAUMANN   CHARLES J BAUMERT   ANTHONY C BAUMGARTNER   
BRIAN BRUCE BAUMLER   TIMOTHY J BAUSMITH   SCOTT A BAXLEY   ROBERT S BAXLEY JR   STEPHANIE RENEE BAXTER   RAY H BAYLESS   WALTER BAYLIS   JESSE E BAYNES III   DALE J BAYS   HOMER L BAZEN   JOHN D BAZEN   BARRY L BEACH   
CHARLES WILLIAM BEACH   MICHAEL BEACH   SADIE E BEACH   TY A BEACH   JASON P BEAGLES   MATTHEW BEAM   RAY GORDON BEAMON JR   ELIZABETH A BEAN   TIMOTHY BEAN   WILLIAM J BEAN   YANCY WILLIAM BEAN   LARRY OLIVER BEAR   JAMES ALAN BEARD   
JAMES R BEARD   RANDY BEARD   SAMUEL T BEARD   STEVE BEARD   THOMAS STEPHEN BEARD   GEORGE BRIAN BEASLEY   JAMES A BEASLEY   SHANE A BEASLEY   PATRICIA BEATTIE   RANDEL G BEATTY   DAVID F BEAUPRE   JAMES BEAVER   MOLLY DIANE BEAVER   
ANNA DENISE BEAVERS   BRIAN SCOTT BEAVERS   LACY D BEAVERS JR   JANET S BECHTEL   LAWRENCE J BECIGNEUL JR   BRIAN S BECK   JAMES W BECK   TERRY L BECK   JACK G BECKER   JEREMY M BECKER   JON S BECKER   MARY E BECKER   
WILLIAM A BECKHAM III   ROBERT J BECKHAM JR   LEROY BECKLEY   KEVIN R BECKMANN   JAY L BEDDINGFIELD   BRIAN J BEEBE   TISHA BEECHING   KENNETH D BEED   RODNEY A BEER   NATHAN J BEERBOWER   CURT R BEERMAN   TREVOR J BEERS   
MELISSA BEEVERS   WINCEL L BEGGS JR   JOSEPH M BEHIL   MARK A BEHMER   ALLEN C BEHR   PAUL D BELCHER   TIMOTHY BELCHER   LORI BELEW   AARON CRAIG BELL   BILLY L BELL   BRIAN J BELL   CHRISTOPHER B BELL   CLINT ALLEN BELL   DANNY Q BELL   
DAVID BELL   DAVID J BELL   DEBORAH E BELL   GARY L BELL   HEATH B BELL   JERRY BELL   JOHN R BELL   RICHARD G BELL   ROBERT L BELL   STANLEY M BELL   STEVEN R BELL   WILLIE B BELL   LORRIE J BELLAR   GREGORY L BELLEW   CECIL BELLFLOWERS   
DARIUS V BELLINGER   CHARLES PAUL BELLNIER   MARK A BELLOMY   JOSHUA BELT   JOSE R BELTRAN   CANDACE J BELTZ   JERRY A BELTZ   LARRY L BELTZ   LEANN BELTZ   JOSE J BENAVIDES   JUDY M BENCINI   JASON N BENDA   TODD D BENDA   SEAN M BENDER   
GARY W BENEDICT   GEORGE R BENEFIELD   SHAWN E BENEFIELD   GREGORY A BENGE   CLARENCE A BENGSTON   AVERY L BENJAMIN   DAVID L BENJAMIN   DONNIE BENJAMIN   LESTER BENJAMIN   NATHANIEL BENJAMIN   GLENDA BENNER   JOHN M BENNER   
AARON BENNETT   ALBERT B BENNETT   BOBBY R BENNETT   CALVIN BENNETT   CHRISTOPHER B BENNETT   DANIEL C BENNETT   DAVID BENNETT   DONALD J BENNETT   JOHN L BENNETT   ROBERT H BENNETT   STEVEN S BENNETT   STEVEN W BENNETT   
THOMAS E BENNETT   WALTER C BENNETT   CORNELIUS BENNETT JR   JAMES E BENNINGTON   RICHARD D BENOIT   BILLY REX BENSON   EARNEST BENSON   GENE W BENSON   JERRY BENSON   JOHN BENSON   PETER E BENSON   RICKY D BENSON   
STEPHEN THOMAS BENSON SR   JOHN BENTEU   APRIL J BENTLEY   CHRISTOPHER W BENTLEY   JEFF B BENTLEY   MATTHEW A BENTLEY   JAMES K BENTON   THOMAS P BENTON   WILLIAM ALLEN BENTON JR   WILLIAM F BENTON JR   DEL BENZENHAFER   
BARRY W BERG   DANIEL L BERGQUIST   THOMAS E BERGSTROM   HENOCK BERHANU   ALBERTO C BERMUDEZ   DAVID BERNAL   BRENT J BERNER   CHAD M BERNHARDT   JILL E BERNHARDT   RANDALL W BERNHARDT   JOHN A BERNIER   STEVEN W BERNINGER   
GAYLE BERRETT   ROBERT W BERRETT   STEPHEN BERRETT   BENJAMIN BERRIOS III   BEVAN M BERRY   BRIAN LOWELL BERRY   BRIAN WILLARD BERRY   CALVIN BERRY   CHERYL BERRY   DAVID E BERRY   DERON JOEL BERRY   MELLISA E BERRY   MICHAEL BERRY   
PETER R BERRY   RICHARD BERRY   SHAWN L BERRY   STEVEN D BERRY   TRACY L BERRY   JAMES EDWARD BERRY JR   THOMAS BERRY JR   JAMES EDWARD BERRY SR   KEVIN E BERRYHILL   MICHAEL A BERRYHILL   SHANNON J BERRYHILL   KARL H BERSCHAUER   
JOAN E BERWALD   ELMA M BESSINGER   BECKY J BESSMER   TERRY P BESSMER   TIM E BESSMER   ALLISON M BEST   BENJAMIN L BEST   JANICE E BEST   JIMMY L BEST   JOSEPH A BEST   THOMAS BEST   ALEJANDRO G BETANCOURT   RAUL G BETANCOURT   
CHARLES C BETTS   BRYON E BEUTLER   STANLEY W BEVANS   JOSEPH E BEVEL   STEPHEN R BEVINGTON   WILLIAM D BEVIS   AJIT KUMAR BHANOT   DENNIS D BICKEL   BILLY G BIDDLE JR   DENNIS S BIERING   JAMES P BIERMAN   JOEL J BIERMAN   
JAMES PAUL BIERNAT   JOHN O BIGGS   CLAUDE E BIGGS JR   RAYMOND W BILLBROUGH JR   CYNTHIA A BILLINGS   GEORGE C BILLINGS   JEREMIAH BILLS   WILLIAM A BILSING III   WILLIAM ALBERT BILSING IV   JUSTIN T BILSTEIN   MARY ALYCE BING   
BRETT V BINGHAM   CLIFFORD D BINGHAM   CRAIG R BINGHAM   GARRICK G BINGHAM   JEFFREY T BINGHAM   V GLADE BINGHAM   WALTER E BINGHAM   DONALD BINGMAN   TERRY L BINKARD   VICKI BINKLEY   SUE A BINNEBOSE   THOMAS BINSFELD   
JERRY D BIRD   JOSEPH LOUIS BIRDNOW   PHILLIP BIRDWELL   CHRISTOPHER D BIRKBECK   BRYAN K BIRKES   ROBERT N BIRKS   BRIAN C BIRR   EDDIE D BISHOP   JEFFREY K BISHOP   TAMEKA LASHAN BISHOP   MICHAEL B BITZKY   CARLA BIVENS   
MARK A BIVENS   TIMOTHY BIVINS   DAVID R BJORK   MICHAEL D BJORK   BRIAN BJORKMAN   CHRISTOPHER J BLACK   JAMES R BLACK   JEREMY A BLACK   KENNETH BARRY BLACK   LEONARD E BLACK   SAMUEL R BLACK   SHELDON G BLACK   WILLIAM W BLACK   
GARY R BLACKBURN   J  MICAH BLACKBURN   SUSAN L BLACKBURN   AMY R BLACKMAN   JAMES S BLACKMAN   ROBERT C BLACKMAN   ALBERT L BLACKMON   GEORGE G BLACKMON   RENETHA D BLACKMON   MAX L BLACKMORE   GREGORY S BLACKWELL   
ANTHONY L BLAINE   EDDIE BLAIR   MELVIN ROY BLAIR JR   DANIEL M BLAISDELL   KEITH D BLAISDELL   DONALD A BLAKE   RICHARD T BLAKE   ROBERT W BLAKE   HARRIS T BLAKELEY JR   CHARLTON H BLAKELY   DARRELL E BLAKEMORE   MICHAEL R BLAKEMORE   
BARNEY CLARENCE BLAKNEY   BRADLEY E BLALOCK   RODNEY L BLALOCK   ROGER D BLALOCK   DOUGLAS L BLANCHARD   MICHAEL BLANCO   MARK A BLANK   ROGER L BLANK   CARR E BLANKENSHIP   LARI BLANKENSHIP   LOMAR L BLANKENSHIP   
MICHAEL D BLANKENSHIP   PAUL A BLANKENSHIP   THOMAS BLANKENSHIP   ERIC BLANSCETT   DON-ANDRE BLANSETT   JAMES T BLANSIT   HORACE H BLATON JR   JAMES F BLAUVELT   TODD A BLAUVELT   TIMOTHY SCOTT BLAYLOCK   LARRY E BLEVINS   
JAMES H BLEW   MATTHEW L BLITCH   THOMAS A BLITCH   GREGORY L BLOOM   CHRISTOPHER D BLOOMQUIST   CODY M BLOOMQUIST   DENNIS D BLOOMQUIST   RODNEY D BLOOMQUIST   JAMES W BLOSKIS   RUSSELL WAYNE BLOUNT   TERRY T BLOUNT   
LESLIE W BLUE   SHANNON D BLUE   TRAVIS D BLUE JR   ERIC D BLUM   MATTHEW L BLUME   RICHARD K BLUME II   DONNIE O BLYTHE   BILLY A BOATWRIGHT   ROBERT V BOBAY JR   MARCUS D BOBO   LAVERNE MITCHELL BOCHETTE JR   TIMOTHY A BODIFORD   
DORIS A BOEHM   DENISE B BOERST   MICHAEL R BOETTCHER   JEROME D BOGAN   SCOTT J BOGAN   ALLEN BOGGS   KURT A BOGNER   KINLOCK O BOGUE III   MARK J BOGUSKI   ROLAND J BOGUSZEWSKI   ELDEN L BOHANNON   LARRY J BOHLKEN   
CYNTHIA L BOHMANN   BRIAN G BOHN   JAMES D BOHNER   BRETT A BOJRAB   JOSEPH H BOLAM JR   DENNIS A BOLDUAN   JAMES E BOLEN   ORVILLE BOLEN JR   ANDREW B BOLIN   CHARLES W BOLIN   BRANDON BOLLINGER   PETER HOWARD BOLLIS   
DAVID E BOLT   GARRY LEE BOLTON   STREAMER L BOMAN   AARON BOND   BENJAMIN K BOND   HUGHIE BOND   JEWELL R BOND   STEVEN V BOND   CHRISTOPHER D BONE   LARRY W BONE   MELODIE M BONE   PAUL J BONERTZ   ILLA BONG   SANDRA S BONNER   
TWUN O BONNER   JAMES G BONNOITT   RICHARD B BONNOITT   BILL M BONTA   DANIEL BONTRAGER   JAMES C BOOKER   JOHN KELLY BOOKER   ROCKEY DARYL BOOKER II   JOHN A BOOTHE   JOHNATHAN H BOOTLAND   JASON A BOOTS   STEPHEN A BOOZER   
CHARLES J BORDEN   JONNEY RAY BORDEN   WILLIAM L BORDEN   ROBERT BORDERS   JOSEPH LEIGH BORDONARO   JACK W BOREN   JASON E BOREN   STEVEN B BOREN   LESLIE J BORER   RODNEY L BORER   ROMAN J BORER   GARY L BORGMAN   FRED G BORT   
JEFFREY A BORTON   BRIAN P BOS   PHILLIP BOSHEARS   LONNIE D BOSHELL   SHANNON J BOSSARD   STEVEN J BOSSARD   OTIS H BOSTIC   REGINALD V BOSTON   BRUCE W BOSWELL   ROBERT A BOSWELL   SOURIPHAN BOUAPHASEUTH   ALLEN J BOUDREAU   
PETER O BOUDREAU   STEVE P BOUDREAU   KEITH M BOUGHN   PERCY BOULDIN   DARYL B BOUNDS   JIMMY BOUNLOM   CHRISTOPHER E BOURASSA   ROBERT M BOURASSA   AARON S BOUSER   LAWRENCE S BOUVIER   A JAY BOWCUTT   BRUCE BOWCUTT   
WESLEY V BOWCUTT   MARK H BOWDEN   ROBERT BOWDOIN   KEVIN M BOWE   GORDON R BOWEN   WILLIAM M BOWEN   WILBURN P BOWEN SR   WINFORD BOWENS   RICHARD L BOWERMAN   ELIZABETH W BOWERS   JUSTIN D BOWERS   LYNN A BOWERS   
MELFORD C BOWERS   GORDON W BOWLES   DAVID P BOWLING   DEWEY J BOWLING   JOHN D BOWLING   BRADD A BOWMAN   BRIAN E BOWMAN   GEORGE BOWMAN   JAMES BOWMAN   JOHN BOWMAN   ERIC BOWSER   BETTY L BOWYER   SAMUEL BOX   
JOHN H BOYCE   SCOTT E BOYCE   ALANDIS EARL BOYD   CHRISTOPHER M BOYD   CLINT BOYD   CRAIG D BOYD   DENNIS M BOYD   DONALD BOYD   JEFFERY M BOYD   MARK A BOYD   NATHANIEL BOYD   REGINALD E BOYD   TERRY BOYD   LARRY T BOYER   
MARK BOYKIN   JADE R BOYLES   JOEL W BOYLES   ANNMARIE BOZEK   ALLEN G BRACEY   MICHAEL H BRACKEN   RANDY D BRACKINS   MICHAEL M BRADBURY   SHELTON H BRADBURY   CHRISTOPHER B BRADDY   DAVID BRENT BRADFORD   MILTON O BRADFORD   
ROGER D BRADFORD   TERRY BRADFORD   BRIAN J BRADLEY   JAMES S BRADLEY   MICHAEL D BRADLEY   WILLIAM E BRADLEY   JOSHUA P BRADOC   CURTIS W BRADSHAW   GLEN H BRADSHAW   BRETT E BRADY   TRAVIS A BRADY   BRANDON JAY BRAEGGER   
LYLE J BRAEGGER   LARRY G BRAGGS   NICK A BRAKER   NATHAN LANE BRALY   MICHAEL D BRAMES   JIMMY B BRAMLETT   JOHN R BRANCH   JOSHUA P BRAND   RONALD V BRAND   CALVIN BRANDENBURG   JAMES R BRANDENBURG   DANNY J BRANDL   
ROBERT E BRANDL   DONNA J BRANDON   E L BRANDON   MARK M BRANDON   ROBERT L BRANDON   DAVID BRANDT   RICK E BRANDT   TIMOTHY L BRANDT   STEVE BRANNEN   WILLIAM H BRANNOCK   BILLY D BRANNON   ROBBIE BRANNON   STEVEN NICK BRANNON   
RANDY BRANNUM   THOMAS M BRANT   IVONNE J BRANTING   KIRK R BRANTLEY   ROBERT BRANTON   MICHAEL R BRANZ   JOHN P BRASELL   LINDA DIANNE BRASWELL   KEVIN R BRATCHER   GREGORY A BRAUN   JEFFREY DONALD BRAUN   JOSEPH C BRAUN JR   
MIKE W BRAXTON   ALVIN E BRAZELL JR   FRANK W BRAZELTON   JOSHUA MICHAEL BRAZIEL   PATRICK NEAL BRAZIER   JESSE BRAZILE   JOHN L BREDEHOFT   CARL BREECE JR   JOHN WAYNE BREEDS   SEAN D BREESE   JOHN FRANCIS BREEZE   
CLAYBORN BRELAND JR   ANITA B BREMER   CHRISTOPHER J BRENNAN   DANIEL BRENNAN   THOMAS E BRENNAN   THOMAS J BRENNAN   C MONTE BRENNEMAN   HAROLD JOE BRENTON JR   LOREN M BRENTS   KURTIS BRETEY   DENNIS R BRETSCHNEIDER   
BILL D BREWER   BRANTLEY G BREWER   HAROLD E BREWER   JEREMY L BREWER   JULIE D BREWER   MARGARET E BREWER   MICHAEL LEE BREWER   PAUL D BREWER   PHILLIP W BREWER   RICKY LYNN BREWER   SONO BREWER   WILLIAM B BREWER   
ROBERT BRICELY   DALE BRICKER JR   JOHN MICHAEL BRIDGEFORTH   DAVID W BRIDGES   GREGORY BRIDGES   JARED BRIDGES   MARY B BRIDGES   RICKY BRIDGES   SCHERRI BRIDGES   GEORGE BRIER   JEFFERY A BRIER   ALAN G BRIGGS   JOSEPH C BRIGGS   
DALE BRIGHT   DAPHNE A BRIGHT   RAYMOND D BRIGMAN   JAMES A BRILEY   RONALD J BRILEY   ROGER D BRIM   EDDIE BRIMBERRY   VINCENT L BRIMER   KEITH ALLEN BRINKLEY   PHYLLIS B BRINKLEY   DONALD R BRINLEY   GERALD BRINSON   STEVEN M BRISSEY   
DANIEL J BRISSON   BRANDON L BRISTOW   CHRIS BRISTOW   ROBERT L BRISTOW   ANTONIO BRITO   DERRYL BRITT   STARLET J BRITT   RICHARD K BRITTON   BRIAN C BRIZENDINE   ALVIN BROACH   JOHNATHAN S BROACH   STEVE L BROACH   PENNY S BROAD   
J CURTIS BROADBENT   LARRY B BROADHEAD   MATTHEW N BROADHEAD   ROBERT K BROADHEAD   LEONARD L BROADNAX   LONNEY R BROADUS   RUSTY L BROADUS   CHADWICK J BROCK   CHRIS M BROCK   JASON M BROCK   MARY E BROCK   ROBERT M BROCK   
RON D BROCK   EDRICK J BROCKINGTON   MICHAEL A BROCKMAN   JOHN ROBERT BRODMAN   KENNETH BRODMAN   MARLON W BROEKEMEIER   CHARLES G BROGAN   DONALD M BROGAN   KERI J BROGREN   RYAN M BROGREN   DANIEL BROMLEY   
BRANDON BRONSON   COREY R BRONSON   JONATHON W BRONSON   LORI A BROOKE   ADAM W BROOKS   BLAINE MANUEL BROOKS   BRADY BROOKS   CHRISTOPHER A BROOKS   CHRISTOPHER SEAN BROOKS   DANIEL L BROOKS   DOUGLAS D BROOKS   
EDWARD BROOKS   EMORY L BROOKS   JEFF D BROOKS   JESSE M BROOKS   JOE BROOKS   JOHN E BROOKS   KERRY L BROOKS   LARRY BROOKS   PHILIP B BROOKS   SHAUN R BROOKS   TODD S BROOKS   TROY BROOKS   WILLIAM BROOKS   DENNIS BROOME   
JOHN W BROSH   RICKY BROTHERS JR   BRUCE F BROTHERSEN   BRANDON MICHAEL BROUGH   ROBIN A BROUGHTON   JOAN L BROWDER   DANIEL R BROWER    ANTHONY C BROWN   BARRY BROWN   BENJAMIN I BROWN   BRUCE BROWN   BRUCE BROWN   
CALVIN BROWN   CASEY ALLEN BROWN   CHARLIE BROWN   CHRISTOPHER C BROWN   CHRISTOPHER T BROWN   CORY D BROWN   COURTNEY BROWN   CRAVEN S BROWN   DARRELL B BROWN   DINA BROWN   DONALD R BROWN   DOUGLAS K BROWN   
ELROY BROWN   FREDERICK DEMETRIUS BROWN   GLEN BROWN   GREGORY BROWN   GRETA O BROWN   HEATH V BROWN   HERSHEL RAY BROWN   ILLINOIS BROWN   JAMES A BROWN   JAMES ALBERT BROWN   JAMES LEBRON BROWN   JAMES V BROWN   
JANA BROWN   JASON H BROWN   JERRY T BROWN   JOHN BROWN   JOHN D BROWN   JOHNNY BROWN   JOHNNY BROWN   JOSEPH J BROWN   JOSEPH R BROWN   KALEA DAILEY BROWN   KEITH S BROWN   KENNETH W BROWN   KENNY R BROWN   KERWIN L BROWN   
KEVIN E BROWN   KYLE W BROWN   LARRY BROWN   LARRY A BROWN   LARRY A BROWN   LAWRENCE S BROWN   LORI B BROWN   M TODD BROWN   MAX A BROWN   MICHAEL BROWN   MICHAEL J BROWN   MICHAEL L BROWN   MICHAEL R BROWN   MYRON MARK BROWN   
NEAL N BROWN   NELSON WOODROW BROWN   NICKOLAS J BROWN   PAUL D BROWN   QUINTON O BROWN   RALPH BROWN   RALPH D BROWN   RANDY L BROWN   RAYMOND BROWN   RICHARD A BROWN   ROBERT C BROWN   ROBERT L BROWN   ROBERT P BROWN   
ROBERT S BROWN   ROBNELL BROWN   ROGER L BROWN   ROGER NEIL BROWN   SAMMY D BROWN   SEAN E BROWN   SONNY BROWN   TIMOTHY RAY BROWN   TRACY L BROWN   TROY G BROWN   VIRGINIA A BROWN   WAYNE L BROWN   WILLIAM S BROWN   
RICKY BROWN SR   MICHAEL MURPHY BROWN II   LUTHER BROWN III   JACK E BROWN JR   ROBERT S BROWNE   ANDREW M BROWNFIELD   BOBBY LEE BROWNING   LARRY BROWNING   ROBERT C BROYHILL   RYAN M BRUBAKER   CHRISTOPHER S BRUBECK   
JEREMY J BRUCE   ROGER N BRUCE   JOHNATHON C BRUDER   KURT L BRUDIGAN   HENRY C BRUEGGEMAN   RYAN BRUEGGERT   DALE F BRUENING   TOM C BRUENING   RANDY D BRUMBELOW   BRADLEY A BRUMMELS   CORY A BRUMMELS   STEVEN R BRUMMELS   
PATRICK W BRUNE   JOEL P BRUNING   CURTIS W BRUNS   WAYNE C BRY   MARK A BRYAN   TIMOTHY DALE BRYAN   TONY L BRYAN   HARRIS C BRYAN JR   DONALD BRYANT   HEATH W BRYANT   JAMES E BRYANT   LARRY BRYANT   LISA L BRYANT   MILLARD JASON BRYANT   
PEGGY D BRYANT   ROBERT M BRYANT   RONALD E BRYANT   WAYNE NEWTON BRYANT   HERMAN R BRYANT JR   HERMAN R BRYANT SR   MICHEAL BRYCE   NICK A BUCCI   ALAN E BUCHANAN   DAVID M BUCHANAN   MARTIN BUCHANAN   MICHAEL J BUCHS   
DOUGLAS C BUCK   EDWARD J BUCK   JAMES WARD BUCK   JOE R BUCK   DANNY R BUCKENDAHL   SCOTT L BUCKENDAHL   KEITH S BUDGE   BRYAN W BUECHLEY   DAREN J BUETTNER   IRVING AUGUST BUETTNER   KEVIN S BUFF   RICHIE BUFFINGTON   
LEAH J BUFORD   PERRY LEE BUFORD   BROOK C BUGENHAGEN   JAMES E BUHL   MICHAEL J BUHL   DEVERN L BUHRMAN   JAMES A BUKOFFSKY   KATHERINE H BUKOFFSKY   CAREY W BULLARD   STACEY C BULLARD   BOBBY G BULLARD JR   JAMES D BULLERDICK   
JAMES K BULLOCK   JANICE J BULLOCK   MARION D BULLOCK   DAVID C BULTEMEIER   KELLY R BUNCH   JEREMY S BUNDY   TIMOTHY M BUNDY   GWENDOLYN B BUNN   JAYE M BURAS   BROOKS J BURBACH   CHRISTOPHER A BURCH   JEFFREY SCOTT BURCH   
TERRY D BURCHAM   GEORGE H BURCHARD   RONALD E BURDETTE   JEFF B BURFIELD   JONATHAN L BURFORD   CHRISTOPHER L BURGE   JAMIE M BURGESS   JEFFREY K BURGWINKEL   ANTHONY M BURKE   DEAN E BURKE   DEREK A BURKE   ERIC C BURKE   
KEVIN THOMAS BURKE   STEPHEN R BURKE   STEVE BURKE   MICHAEL BURKES   JEFFREY S BURKHART   FRANK N BURLANDO   BOBBY W BURLESON   WILLIAM L BURNES   WILLY H BURNES   GREGORY A BURNETT   HERBERT J BURNETT   JEANNA BURNETT   
BRIAN BURNS   CAREY M BURNS   CARL L BURNS   CHARLES BURNS   GEORGE D BURNS   JONATHON LYNNE BURNS   LORI A BURNS   RANDY E BURNS   RODNEY G BURNS   VICTOR E BURNS   MICHAEL BURRAN   CONNIE THALIA BURRELL   JOHN L BURRELL   
KIM M BURRELL   LONNIE C BURRELL   TOMMY LANCE BURRESS   DAVID M BURRIS   MATTHEW D BURROUGHS   RICHARD S BURROUGHS   DAMON EUGENE BURROW   FLOYD LEON BURROW III   DANIEL S BURSON   CLINT BURT   DUANE ALEX BURT   FAYE LYNN BURT   
GLENN D BURT   JOHNNY R BURT   KENNETH BURT   NATHAN S BURT   TED J BURT   CHARLES R BURTIS   CHAD BURTON   CLAYTON BURTON   ERIC V BURTON   JULIE BROOKE BURTON   KENNETH BURTON   KENT K BURTON   PHILIP A BURTON   SANDRA S BURTON   
DANIEL A BUSCHE   DENA C BUSENBARK   LISA A BUSENBARK   CHRIS L BUSENBARK JR   JEFFERY B BUSER   BENNY BUSH   DARRIN C BUSH   GEORGE BUSH   KARL D BUSH   RYAN W BUSH   JASON PATRICK BUSHALLOW   BRETT MATHEW BUSHONG   
BRIAN D BUSHONG   PAUL D BUSHONG   JAMES BUSSEY   BOBBY BUTLER   CORY C BUTLER   ERIC J BUTLER   FRANKIE P BUTLER   GRADY EUGENE BUTLER   JAMES M BUTLER   JODY L BUTLER   KENNETH SHANE BUTLER   LARRY DAVID BUTLER   LYNN B BUTLER   
REBECCA BUTLER   ROBERT H BUTLER   TOMMY W BUTLER   ROBERT R BUTLER JR   BRAD H BUTTARS   F GENE BUTTERFIELD   RONALD E BUTTERFIELD   BRUCE W BUTTON   ALLAN D BUTTRAM   BILL BUXTON   GREGORY BUYER   ALDEN V BYBEE   
AARON J BYERLEY   MARK A BYERLEY   JOSEPH H BYERLY   BRIAN D BYINGTON   TRAVIS A BYNUM   BEAYANKA J BYRD   CHARLES R BYRD   CRAIG BYRD   DANIEL W BYRD   JAMES BYRD   KEVIN J BYRD   MAXZELLA BYRD   MONTRAY J BYRD   WILLIAM E BYRD   
CLAUDE A BYRD JR   ROBERT L BYRD JR   TONY LYNN BYRUM   JERRY S BYWATER   EDWARD E CABLE   JEFF CABLE   ROBERT RAY CABLE   WILLIAM ANDRES CADDELL   KENNETH L CADMAN   BAXTER MATTHEW CAGLE   DEBRA ALEENE CAGLE   GARY CAGLE   
JACE CAGLE   JOSEPH CAGLE   RUDI W CAGLE   WILSON J CAGLE JR   LAWRENCE J CAHALAN   BERNICE PETTY CAIN   CHRISTOPHER J CAIN   CHRISTOPHER L CAIN   ROBERT L CAISON JR   ROCCO CALAMUSA   GERARDO CALDERON   SALVADOR CALDERON   
DEBRA A CALDWELL   WALTER CALDWELL   JOHN R CALHAN   CRAIG L CALHOUN   LOWELL D CALHOUN   RICHARD J CALHOUN   CHUCK D CALLAHAN   KEVIN J CALLAHAN   THOMAS HOLLIS CALLAHAN JR   DENNIS W CALLOW   RICHARD CALO’OY   CHRISTOPHER P CALVIN   
WILLIE CALVIN   ROBERT G CAMARILLO   DAVID S CAMERER   JAMES E CAMERON   THOMAS CAMERON   BRIAN C CAMP   CHRISTOPHER J CAMP   ALAN Q CAMPBELL   CLARENCE CAMPBELL   GARY CAMPBELL   JAMES E CAMPBELL   JEFFREY C CAMPBELL   
JOHN CAMPBELL   JOHN J CAMPBELL   JOHN S CAMPBELL   JON CAMPBELL   KRISTINA M CAMPBELL   OLIVIA K CAMPBELL   PETER C CAMPBELL   RICK L CAMPBELL   VINCENT A CAMPBELL   WILLIAM E CAMPBELL   RICHARD D CAMPBELL JR   JORGE A CAMPOS   
BRUCE CANNON   JERRY CANNON   KELLY D CANNON   MICHAEL CANNON   PAUL D CANNON   TERRY L CANNON   ROBERT J CANODE   SAMUEL OLIVER CANOY JR   W  STEVEN CANTLEY   DENNIS A CANTRELL   JOSE G CANTU   MIGUEL A CANTU   ROBERTO CANTU   
DENICE B CAPEHART   BRENT G CAPENER   BRIAN D CAPP   ROLAND D CAPPELLANO   KEVIN D CAPPS   O  JOEY CAPUTO   GARY D CARD   CHRISTOPHER R CAREY   DANIEL L CAREY   DUANE A CAREY   TAMMY SUE CAREY   BLAKE A CARGILE   DAVID CARGILL   
SHARON MARIE CARL   BRIAN E CARLOW   PRISCILLA ANNE CARLSEN   CHRISTOPHER J CARLSON   ERIC W CARLSON   HAROLD D CARLSON   HEATHER L CARLSON   JEROME R CARLSON   RYAN L CARLSON   SCOTT R CARLSON   VICTOR R CARLSON   

LANCE W CARLTON   JOHN W CARMAN   RONI M CARMAN   JEFFREY B CARMEAN   CHAD W CARNAHAN   JERRY W CARNAHAN   WILLIAM C CARNAHAN   DAVID W CARNELL   JERRY P CARNES   EUGENE R CARNEY   THOMAS J CARNEY   ARTHUR JOHN CARNICELLI   JERRY L CARNRIKE JR   
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THOMAS E CARPENTER   CHAD A CARPER   RICKIE L CARPER   RONALD D CARPER   ANGELA L CARR   ARTHUR CARR   DANIEL CARR   MICHAEL E CARR   RODOLFO CARRASCO   DONALD R CARRAWAY   JOSEPH C CARRAWAY   ROBERT CARRIEDO   AGUSTIN CARRILLO   
JOSHUA N CARRINGTON   ROBERT E CARRINGTON   BETTY K CARROLL   BRIAN CARROLL   J T CARROLL   JACK G CARROLL   JACOB PAUL CARROLL   JEREMY BRENT CARROLL   MARION L CARROLL   RICKY L CARROLL   ROGER H CARROLL   CHRISTOPHER M CARROWAY   
MARTY O CARSON   CRAIG A CARSTENS   LONNIE R CARSTENS   MICHAEL A CARSTENS   TERRY L CARSTENS   JOSEPH M CARTAGENA   JEFFREY T CARTEE   ANTHONY CARTER   BENJAMIN LOUIS CARTER   BYRON J CARTER   CHAD M CARTER   CHARLES G CARTER   
CHRIS EDWIN CARTER   ELDON GWYN CARTER   ELI C CARTER   JACOB CARTER   JAMES A CARTER   JASON T CARTER   JERVONE V CARTER   LARRY J CARTER   LEON CARTER   MARC W CARTER   ODELL CARTER   SCOTT D CARTER   SCOTT R CARTER   TIM D CARTER   
TIMOTHY J CARTER   CHARLES H CARTER III   GLENN R CARTWRIGHT   ANTHONY E CARVER   DENNIS CARVER   NATE A CARVER   WILLIAM V CARY   SHARON K CASE   BETH B CASEY   CHARLES D CASEY   GARETH R CASEY   KENNETH CHARLES CASEY   DONALD E CASH   
KORY E CASH   RICHARD D CASH   THOMAS RAY CASH   FRANK A CASHWELL   ROGER CASON   DANIEL C CASPER   HAROLD JOSEPH CASPER   MARK E CASPER   TAMMY M CASPER   CASS CASPERSON   SCOTT D CASSEL   CRAIG A CASSELMAN   GARY W CASSELMAN   
CHARLIE E CASSIDY   CHRISTOPHER K CASSIDY   JEFFREY L CASSIDY   TONY R CASSIDY   JAVIER CASTANEDA   JESSE N CASTANEDA   RALPH CASTANEDA   MARK A CASTEEL   BILLY K CASTELLI   AMY L CASTILLO   JUAN F CASTILLO   FREDERICK CASTLE   
STEVEN E CASTLEBERRY   THOMAS CASTO   JESSICA L CATER   TIMOTHY W CATER   AMY E CATHELL   JOHN D CATO   RONNIE CATO   JOSEPH CATOE   SAMUEL CATOE   LAWRENCE D CATT   RICHARD A CATTS   JOSE G CAVAZOS   BEN R CAVE   TIMOTHY J CAYWOOD   
DANIEL R CECIL   HAROLD E CECIL   CRISTOBAL H CELAYA   DALIA Y CELESTE   MICHAEL P CENTRONE   JOSEPH M CERCHIARO   JOHN ANTHONY CEREO   MICHAEL L CERES   DOUGLAS E CERNY   JEFF CERRATA   THOMAS T CERVANTES   CHRISTOPHER CHABAUD   
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ROBERT E CHANDLER   JAMES H CHANDLER III   BRAD D CHANEY   JULIE A CHANEY   FORREST DEAN CHAP   CHAD A CHAPEK   ADAM CHAPMAN   JACK B CHAPMAN   JEFFREY W CHAPMAN   JOE R CHAPMAN   LELAND K CHAPMAN   LESTER F CHAPMAN   MARK E CHAPMAN   
BOBBY R CHAPMAN JR   JOE C CHAPPELL   LINDA R CHAPPELL   ANDREW J CHAPPLE   JOSHUA W CHARLES   RANDOLPH F CHARLES   COY L CHARLESWOOD   SHAWN WILLIAM CHARTIER   DAVID L CHASE   CHARLES T CHATMAN   SUBHASH C CHAUDHRY   CIRENIO CHAVEZ   
PATRICIA A CHAVIS   STEVEN E CHAVIS   MARY CHAYKA   WILLIAM CHEATHAM   ZANE D CHECKETTS   WILLIAM N CHEDDAR   HOYT CHEEK   KEITH A CHEESEBORO   TRACY ALLEN CHERECHINSKY   CARDELL CHERRY   DENNIE S CHERRY   KENNETH W CHERRY   
REBECCA C CHERRY   DAVID M CHERVENY   HEATH M CHESNUT   FLOYD CHESSER SR   MICHAEL D CHESTNUT   MICHAEL T CHIKOS   BRUCE C CHILD   LOWELL D CHILDERS   SHERYL J CHILDERS   CARL CHILDRESS   KENNETH CHILDRESS   SHARI L CHINEVERE   
JESSE CHIPMAN   ANJANI CHITTAJALLU   JERRY M CHITWOOD   HYO H CHOI   BRAD L CHORPENNING   AMIT K CHOUDHRI   DARREN CHRISTENSEN   EDWARD C CHRISTENSEN   GARY KEITH CHRISTENSEN   MICHAEL B CHRISTENSEN   PAUL JENS CHRISTENSEN   
TIMOTHY K CHRISTENSEN   CLETA M CHRISTIAN   DAVID BRYAN CHRISTIAN   BILLY CHRISTIANSEN   CLAIR D CHRISTIANSEN   WAYNE B CHRISTIANSEN   JEREMY B CHRISTIE   CHRISTOPHER J CHRISTMAN   JASON C CHRISTMAN   ROBERT D CHRISTMAN   JERRY F CHRISTMAS   
TERRY L CHRISTMAS   KENNETH L CHRISTOFFERSEN   PAUL H CHRYST JR   STANLEY CHU   JAMES R CHURCH   RICHARD S CHURCHILL   TAMMY CHURCHWELL   JASON W CIEPIELA   KEITH A CIEPIELA   CONNIE L CIESLINSKI   TERRY CIESLINSKI   KEITH A CILLS   
JUAN CINTURA   CATHERINE L CIPRA   KIMBERLY B CLANTON   KYLEE MICHAEL CLANTON   ALAN D CLARK   AMY L CLARK   BENJAMIN M CLARK   CHRISTOPHER C CLARK   DALE O CLARK   DUANE D CLARK   G YVONNE CLARK   JASON M CLARK   JEFFREY T CLARK   
MARK A CLARK   ROBERT D CLARK   STEVEN CLARK   WILLIAM B CLARK   WILLIAM P CLARK   ZACHARY CLARK   CHARLES J CLARK JR   CHARLES R CLARK JR   JACK E CLARK JR   PHILLIP L CLARKE   ROBERT JEFFREY CLARKE   VICKI T CLARKE   WILLIAM R CLARKSTON   
FORREST F CLARY   JUSTIN ADAM CLARY   JACK C CLASSEN   HEATH P CLAUSEN   SCOTT P CLAWSON   DENNIS L CLAY   CHAS CLAYBAUGH   HARVEY DALE CLAYPOOL JR   D KURT CLAYTON   SHERRI CLAYTON   ROBERT A CLEGG   CURTIS S CLEM   KENNETH O CLEM   
RICHARD L CLEMANS   COURY T CLEMENTS   JERRY FARISH CLEMONS   DANIEL J CLER   CHARLES CLEVELAND JR   DALE CLEVER   PAUL ELMER CLIFT   CHRISTOPHER L CLIFTON   SCOTT R CLINE   RANDALL E CLINES   STEVE CLINES   RICHARD J CLINTON   ROGER W CLONCS   
NATHAN E CLOUSE   DANNY J CLOWERS   PAUL A CMOREY   MAXWELL SCOTT COAPMAN   WILLIAM A COATES   JOSEPH R COATS   CHRISTOPHER W COBB   RICHARD E COBB   RODNEY G COBB   STEVEN D COBB   WILLIAM H COBB   CHRISTOPHER W COBBLE   
KYLE COBBLEY   NELDON COBBLEY   CHARLIE COBBS   WILLIAM COBERLY   KORICO S COBIN   JAMES M COBLIN   FLOYD C COBURN   ROGER L COBURN   CYRIL COCHRAN   MARY A COCHRAN   TIMOTHY D COCHRAN   WILLIAM J COCHRAN   DAVID J COCKCROFT   
ROBERT L COCKFIELD JR   RAYMOND W COCKRELL   CHAD J COCKRIEL   SEAN E CODY   LORENZO COE   JAMES T COFER   JOSHUA S COFFER   AMANDA JO COFFEY   THOMAS H COFFEY   CHARLES STEVEN COFFING   GLENN D COFFMAN   JAMES E COFFMAN   
JAMES H COFFMAN   DANNY G COGGINS   PAUL W COHEE   CANDACE E COHEN   BELINDA W COKER   BENJI REX COKER   QUENT L COKER   STEVE O COKER   TIMOTHY L COKER   JAMES M COKER II   JIMMY W COLBURN   ALBERT COLE   BRIAN J COLE   DAVID E COLE   
DOUGLAS J COLE   GREGORY B COLE   JIMMY D COLE   JOSEPH COLE   MICHAEL W COLE   MONICA S COLE   RABORN D COLE   RICHARD MICHAEL COLE   ROBERT JAMES COLE   WILLIAM COLE   JAMES M COLEGROVE   RONALD ANTHONY COLELLA   ALVIN COLEMAN   
CALVIN L COLEMAN   CHARLENE COLEMAN   CYNTHIA W COLEMAN   DAVID W COLEMAN   JAMES COLEMAN   JASON R COLEMAN   JEFFREY P COLEMAN   JOE E COLEMAN   KELLY M COLEMAN   LLOYD COLEMAN   RICHARD D COLEMAN   JEFFREY L COLER   IAN D COLES   
KAREN L COLETTA   BRIAN K COLGAN   DARRIN R COLLARD   HARLEY DAVID COLLARD   JOHN T COLLARD   JOHN W COLLETT   TED J COLLETTE   KAREN J COLLEY   DOUGLAS G COLLIER   LINWOOD F COLLIER   TIM N COLLIER   WILLIAM H COLLIER   JIMMY W COLLIER JR   
BRUCE COLLINS   CHRISTOPHER J COLLINS   CONSTANCE L COLLINS   DANNY H COLLINS   DAVID L COLLINS   DONNIS COLLINS   DOUGLAS COLLINS   DURAND M COLLINS   ERIC P COLLINS   GEORGE W COLLINS   JAMES D COLLINS   JERALD K COLLINS   JOSHUA L COLLINS   
ROBERT L COLLINS   ROBERT W COLLINS   SCOTT COLLINS   ROBERT WESLEY COLLINS II   JOSEPH COLLINS JR   ALISA M COLLINS-CREACH   JAY T COLLINSWORTH   MICHAEL R COLLOM   ROBERT K COLTON   LORENZA COLTRANE JR   VICTOR L COLWELL   SARA I COMBS   
THOMAS COMBS   JOHNNY COMMANDER   SAMUEL E COMMELLA JR   JAMES L COMMENT   JEREMIAH J COMMENT   ROBERTA E COMMENT   BRIAN G COMPTON   CHARLES E COMPTON   TERRY COMPTON   GEORGE CONAWAY JR   RUFINO CONCHOLA   AIMEE M CONGLETON   
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	 	 	 	 2005	 2004	 % CHANGE

FOR THE YEAR

Net sales	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 12%

Earnings:

	 Earnings before income taxes	 2,016,368	 1,731,276	 16%

	 Provision for income taxes	 706,084	 609,791	 16%

	 Net earnings	 1,310,284	 1,121,485	 17%

		  Per share:

			   Basic	 8.34	 7.08	 18%

			   Diluted	 8.26	 7.02	 18%

Dividends declared per share	 1.85	 0.47	 294%

Percentage of net earnings to net sales	 10.3%	 9.9%	 4%

Return on average equity	 33.9%	 38.7%	 -12%

Capital expenditures	 331,466	 285,925	 16%

Depreciation	 375,054	 383,305	 -2%

Sales per employee	 1,159	 1,107	 5%

AT YEAR END

Working capital	 $2,815,854	 $2,109,158	 34%

Property, plant and equipment, net	 2,855,717	 2,818,307	 1%

Long-term debt	 923,550	 923,550	 —

Stockholders’ equity	 4,279,788	 3,455,985	 24%

	 Per share	 27.59	 21.67	 27%

Shares outstanding	 155,110	 159,512	 -3%

Employees	 11,300	 10,600	 7%

F inanc ial  Highl ights (dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS Certain statements made in this annual report are forward-looking statements that involve risks and 
uncertainties. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s best judgment based on current information, and although  
we base these statements on circumstances that we believe to be reasonable when made, there can be no assurance that future events 
will not affect the accuracy of such forward-looking information. As such, the forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future 
performance, and actual results may vary materially from the results and expectations discussed in this report. Factors that might cause 
the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (1) 
the sensitivity of the results of our operations to volatility in steel prices and changes in the supply and cost of raw materials, including 
scrap steel; (2) availability and cost of electricity and natural gas; (3) market demand for steel products; (4) competitive pressure  
on sales and pricing, including pressure from imports and substitute materials; (5) uncertainties surrounding the global economy, 
including excess world capacity for steel production and fluctuations in international conversion rates; (6) U.S. and foreign trade policy 
affecting steel imports or exports; (7) significant changes in government regulations affecting environmental compliance; (8) the cyclical 
nature of the steel industry; (9) capital investments and their impact on our performance; and (10) our safety performance.

FInancial highlights
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To Our Stockholders

Fellow stockholders:

I have previously discussed with you our strategic plan, which aims to generate higher profits 	
in both the high and low periods of our cyclical industry. After working hard to be one 	
of America’s few steel companies to earn a profit during the down cycle earlier this decade,	
I’m pleased to tell you we posted our second consecutive record year of earnings in 2005. 	
Helped by the first expansion in commercial construction in five years, Nucor earned $1.31 	
billion, up 17% from 2004 (and more than four times our record from the most recent previous 
economic peak, $310.9 million in 2000). Diluted earnings per share rose 18% to $8.26. 	
Our return on equity was 33.9%, exceeding our goal of 14%.

The numbers don’t tell the full story. Our 11,300 employees worked together to make 
significant progress on our plan, overcoming several challenges to position us for 
continued success as we move through the next economic cycle. 

Challenges. We faced a number of challenges in 2005, including declining flat-rolled spot pricing, spiking energy prices and 
market disruptions for important raw materials. 

The decline in flat-rolled spot pricing highlights the importance and strength of Nucor’s position as America’s most diverse steel 
and steel products manufacturer. Through each stage of economic and steel market cycles, relatively better conditions in some 
markets have cushioned the impact of more severe conditions in other markets. In 2004, the success of our flat-rolled business, 
along with a strong performance from our plate business, helped drive record earnings for our company. This past year, as our 
flat-rolled business faced tougher market conditions, we had particularly strong results from our Bar Mill Group, along with 
continued strong performance from plate, beam, joist, deck, building systems, fasteners and rebar fabrication businesses.  
In addition, our Sheet Mill Group had the foresight to lock in contract volume with attractive margins, somewhat insulating  
us from slipping spot prices. Please see our Operations Review later in this report for details.

After rising an average of 6% a year for the previous decade, energy prices jumped 30% in 2005, including a 48% increase  
in the cost of natural gas. Nucor's total electricity and natural gas costs for 2005 were up $7 per ton over 2004. Since 
escalating energy costs are an unavoidable fact of life, we set about finding ways to reduce our exposure to this cost pressure. 
In October 2004, we began using derivative financial instruments to hedge a portion of our price risk related to natural gas 
purchases. As a result, we have hedged a significant portion of our projected domestic natural gas requirements out into 2007. 

But that’s not all. Knowing that energy efficiency can be an increasingly critical cost advantage in the years ahead, we continue 
to make investments in this area. In 2005, we either completed or worked on upgrading reheat furnaces to more energy-efficient 
equipment at our bar mills in Auburn, New York; Plymouth, Utah; and Kankakee, Illinois. We also further developed our energy-
efficient Castrip® technology. From liquid steel to cold-rolled products, the Castrip process consumes significantly less energy 
than both integrated facilities and our very energy-efficient thin slab mini-mill facilities.

Hurricane Katrina, one of the worst natural disasters ever to strike this country, disrupted some of our key supplies. Our team 
pulled together to share resources, seek alternate supplies and build our own hydrogen production facilities. These outstanding 
efforts allowed us to meet all of our commitments and take care of our customers. Not everyone in our industry was able  
to accomplish this same feat. I am also proud to tell you that our company and employees provided $1.6 million in donations  
and emergency supplies, and countless hours of volunteer efforts, to help in the recovery from Katrina. 

Strategic Plan. The keys to executing our strategy have been and remain: Optimize existing operations. Pursue strategic 
acquisitions. Continue greenfield growth via the commercialization of new technologies. Grow globally through joint ventures  
that leverage new technologies. 

Daniel R. DiMicco
 Vice Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer
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To Our Stockholders

This past year we moved ahead quickly with our raw materials strategy. As the world’s largest consumer of scrap and substitutes, 
we believe it is critical to develop ample supplies of high-quality scrap substitutes to reduce the effect of fluctuations in scrap 
supplies and allow us to support growth opportunities in higher-quality grades. Thanks to the progress we made in 2005  
on three projects, we expect to control at least 2.5 million metric tons of high-quality scrap substitutes by the end of 2006 
– nearly halfway to our goal of controlling between six and seven million tons. 

During 2005, our HIsmelt® joint venture with Rio Tinto and other partners completed construction of a facility in Western 
Australia that converts iron ore fines and coal fines to liquid metal. We are pleased with initial start-up operations and expect 
initial annual capacity to be 800,000 metric tons, expandable to over 1.5 million metric tons at an attractive capital cost  
per ton of incremental capacity. The team at HIsmelt is successfully navigating the new technology and remains focused  
on resolving the production equipment challenges inherent in commercializing a new technology. 

Our joint venture with CVRD, an environmentally friendly pig iron project in Brazil using cultivated eucalyptus trees as the  
charcoal source, began tapping hot metal on the first mini blast furnace in October. The first module is expected to utilize two 
conventional mini blast furnaces to produce 380,000 metric tons of pig iron annually, and the first blast furnace was operating  
at approximately 50% capacity by year’s end, as team members worked through initial training. The start-up of the second blast 
furnace originally scheduled for November was delayed and should be running as you read this. 

We successfully relocated our direct reduced iron (“DRI”) operation from Louisiana to Trinidad, where we can take advantage  
of a low-cost, long-term supply of natural gas. Our team has completed more than 45% of construction in Trinidad and  
is on schedule to begin operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 with an annual capacity of 1.8 million metric tons of DRI. 

Our rebar fabrication joint ventures are also executing strategic growth plans for down-stream bar products. In the western 
United States, Harris Steel, Inc., our joint venture with the Harris Steel Group, expanded operations in Seattle, Washington, 
opened new branches in Salt Lake City, Utah, and Reno, Nevada, and in January 2006, announced the acquisition of the Fresno, 
California assets of Franklin Reinforcing Steel Company, Inc. Nufab Rebar™, our joint venture with Ambassador Steel, acquired 
Lulich Steel with operations in Louisiana, Texas and Florida, and in January of this year announced the acquisition of Sunbelt 
Works, Inc. with operations in Texas, serving the south central regions of the U.S.
 
We completed two domestic acquisitions during the year. Our new Cold Finish division in Oak Creek, Wisconsin, and our new  
Bar Mill in Marion, Ohio, have been quickly integrated into our operations. I visited both divisions soon after our acquisitions 
as part of my effort to meet with as many Nucor employees as I can on a regular basis. The people were impressive and excited 
to be part of Nucor, and yes, also apprehensive about the change. After talking to hundreds of new teammates, I left both 
operations with a great feeling about the contributions they will make to Nucor going forward. 

In 2004, our Castrip team in Crawfordsville, Indiana, successfully commercialized revolutionary new technology to directly cast 
sheet steel into final shape and thickness. In 2005, the Crawfordsville team focused on improving product quality and product 
development, expanding the grades of steel that could be produced applying the Castrip technology. The team’s progress prompted 
us to announce a second Castrip facility, to be built at Nucor-Yamato Steel in Blytheville, Arkansas.

So as you can see, we made great strides forward in our strategic plan in 2005. More work remains to be done – there is no end  
to our effort to continually improve. We supported our growth strategy with our first true national branding campaign in 2005.  
Our research shows us that the campaign has significantly raised awareness of our company and what we stand for among the 
nation’s business leadership, reinforcing their understanding of Nucor as a growing, innovative leader in the steel industry.

We continue to improve our environmental performance. Our goal is to have ISO 14001 certified Environmental Management 
Systems in all of our operations by the end of 2007. This, combined with our already robust environmental performance, 
will only improve our position as the environmental leader in the steel industry.
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To Our Stockholders

America’s Manufacturing Crisis. As you know, we have been an advocate for Free/Fair trade policy for many years. The domestic 
steel industry operated for a long time with one hand tied behind our backs. While other governments subsidized and otherwise 
supported their steel manufacturers, we have had to compete with illegal imports and lax enforcement of trade laws. The federal 
government’s 2005 extensions of anti-dumping relief and the steel import monitoring and analysis system demonstrate the 
increased understanding of these issues.

In 2004, we broadened our message to call attention to the crisis that has hit manufacturing in this country. Since 1998, this 
country has lost more than three million manufacturing jobs – the backbone of our economy. Those jobs are not just statistics. 
They’re our neighbors and our customers. Our culture prompts us to respond quickly to any long-term threat to our business 
environment, from global overcapacity to scrap supplies, and once again we’ve taken action. In an effort to start a grassroots 
campaign to reverse this manufacturing job loss trend and spur our government to action, we began holding rallies called Town 
Hall Meetings in some of the towns where we do business. 

In 2005, we began to see some encouraging results from our efforts. Attendance at our Town Hall Meetings has grown from  
a few hundred in the beginning to as many as 5,000, including many workers from other companies – proof that our message 
is getting through. At least two of the meetings attracted coverage from national broadcast news networks. In June, the Senate 
created a bi-partisan Senate Manufacturing Caucus focused on exploring, publicizing and solving the problems facing American 
manufacturing. I’m encouraged by the response, and I will continue to speak out on this critical issue for our customers, our 
employees, our stockholders and our country. The grassroots message is spreading, with new champions joining us every day.

Looking Ahead – Opportunities and Risks. So far, 2006 looks to be another solid year for the economy – and Nucor. Commercial 
construction continues to rebound, while rises in interest rates appear to be moderating. Risks revolve around the level and 
pricing of imports into our market and whether they are traded in a legal and non-dumped fashion. The massive overcapacity 
buildup in China’s government-owned steel industry presents a risk not just to the U.S. market but to the world’s market for 
steel. We believe the Chinese government will act responsibly, but this serious threat still remains.

We have learned that in all phases of our economic cycle, we must continue to pursue our strategic plan and our goal to take 
care of the customer by being the safest, highest quality, lowest cost, most productive and most profitable steel producer in the 
world. We will accomplish this while being cultural and environmental leaders in the communities where we live and work.  
And we will accomplish all this by working together as a Team.

The focus of our 11,300 employees on that goal helped make 2005 a record year for us, and I’m confident we will maintain  
that critical focus in 2006. Our executive team here in Charlotte sends a BIG THANK YOU to all 11,300 teammates around  
the Company, and to you, our stockholders for all your support and accomplishments in 2005. Nucor’s best years are still  
ahead of us!

Let’s Continue to Do It TOGETHER.

Daniel R. DiMicco 
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



�
To Our Stockholders

Nucor’s net sales for 2005 were a record $12.70 billion, an increase of 12% from $11.38 
billion in 2004. Net earnings were a record $1.31 billion, an increase of 17% over $1.12 
billon earned in 2004. Although Nucor has a long history of excellent financial performance, 
2004 and 2005 have truly been break-out years.

This exceptional performance has been the result of the successful implementation  
of our strategic plan, combined with very good market conditions. Our investments  
in existing operations together with acquisitions have increased hot rolled steel production 
capacity from 13 million tons in 2000, to almost 25 million tons today. Metal margin, 
the spread between selling prices and scrap costs, remained strong as the raw material 
surcharge implemented in 2004 continued to mitigate the impact of scrap price volatility.

Nucor’s utilization rate in 2005 was approximately 82% of production capacity  
(an average of all operating facilities), reflecting demand softness in the early part  
of 2005. In spite of this early softness, a strengthening in our core commercial 

construction markets helped Nucor achieve new records in 2005 for steel production, total steel shipments and steel sales  
to outside customers. Steel production in 2005 increased 3% to 20,332,000 tons, compared with 19,737,000 tons in 2004. 
Total steel shipments improved 6% to 20,669,000 tons, compared with 19,464,000 tons a year earlier. Steel shipments  
to outside customers increased 7% to 19,020,000 tons, compared with 17,787,000 tons in 2004. Nucor also achieved gains  
in the steel products segments as steel joist production was 554,000 tons in 2005, compared with 522,000 tons in 2004.  
Steel deck sales increased to a record 380,000 tons in 2005, compared with 364,000 tons in 2004. Cold finished steel  
sales increased to a record 342,000 tons in 2005, compared with 271,000 tons in 2004. Building systems sales were  
a record 114,000 tons in 2005, compared with 113,000 tons a year earlier.

Nucor’s success is built upon sound business fundamentals, including conservative financial and accounting practices and  
plain language, easy-to-understand financial reporting. We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance sheet liabilities. 
Cash flow from operations of $2.14 billion for 2005 eclipsed last year’s record performance of $1.02 billion. At the end  
of 2005, Nucor’s cash and short-term investments reached $1.84 billion, while debt to total capital was reduced to less than 
18%. We remain committed to maintaining a strong financial position and view our industry-high credit rating as a competitive 
advantage in a globally consolidating industry.

The Nucor team is focused on generating shareholder value, and we have increased our dividend every year since we began 
paying dividends in 1973. In 2005, Nucor increased its base dividend and paid quarterly supplemental dividends, resulting  
in dividend payments tripling from $69.7 million in 2004 to $209.8 million in 2005. Nucor increased the dividend payment 
from $0.40 per share in the fourth quarter of 2005 to $0.65 per share ($0.15 base and $0.50 supplemental) in the first 
quarter of 2006. In addition, Nucor has declared a total dividend of $0.70 per share ($0.20 base and $0.50 supplemental) 
payable in May 2006 to stockholders of record on March 31, 2006.

Although we are pleased with our recent performance, we are never satisfied. The 11,300 men and women of Nucor remain 
committed to working together, taking care of our customers and generating even more shareholder value. We believe Nucor  
is well positioned for another very good year in 2006. 

Sincerely,

Terry S. Lisenby
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Executive Vice President

Terry S. Lisenby
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer

 and Executive Vice President



�
To Our Stockholders

The year 2005 proved to be another period of extraordinary and dynamic change and challenge 
for the global steel market: Consolidation, continued growth in China’s demand, volatile input 
costs. Amidst this turbulence, Nucor recorded its second consecutive record earnings year. 

It’s easy to see success in a strong year like 2005. What may be more difficult  
to appreciate is the thoughtful strategy and hard work effected by the company’s 
leadership – including all 11,300 members of the Nucor team over the past five years 
– who have helped bring about these results. 

As a result of this strong performance, for the second consecutive year, in addition  
to the regular dividend declared for the 132nd consecutive quarter, the board of directors 
declared a supplemental dividend. The board also approved the purchase of up to 10 
million shares of common stock upon completion of the previously authorized buyback 
program. To recognize the continuing strong contribution of the entire Nucor team,  

the board approved management’s request to award Nucor employees (excluding senior officers) a year-end special bonus  
of $2,000, along with another record year of profit sharing. 

On behalf of the board, we would like to congratulate Nucor’s leadership and outstanding team of 11,300 employees  
for a job well done – and for all the work in previous years that contributed to the success of 2005 and continued success  
moving forward.

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Peter C. Browning 
Non-Executive Chairman

Peter C. Browning
Non-Executive Chairman



Our goal is to 

We are accomplishing this by being the safest, highest quality, 

lowest cost, most productive and most profitable steel and steel 

products company in the world. We are committed to doing this 

while being cultural and environmental stewards in our 

communities where we live and work. 

“take care of our customers.” 

We are succeeding by working together. 
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STEEL products SEGMENT

Vulcraft

Products: Steel joists, joist girders and steel deck 	
for non-residential building construction.

Florence, South Carolina
Norfolk, Nebraska
Fort Payne, Alabama
Grapeland, Texas
St. Joe, Indiana
Brigham City, Utah
Chemung, New York (Vulcraft of New York, Inc.)

Cold Finish

Products: Cold finished steel bars for shafting and precision 
machined parts.

Norfolk, Nebraska
Darlington, South Carolina
Brigham City, Utah
Oak Creek, Wisconsin (Nucor Cold Finish Wisconsin, Inc.)

Building Systems

Products: Metal buildings and metal building components 	
for commercial, industrial and institutional building markets.

Waterloo, Indiana
Swansea, South Carolina 
Terrell, Texas

Fastener

Products: Steel hexhead cap screws, structural bolts and 
hex bolts for automotive, machine tools, farm implements, 
construction and military applications. 

St. Joe, Indiana

NUCON STEEL

Products: Load bearing light gauge steel framing systems 	
for the commercial and residential construction markets.

Denton, Texas
Dallas, Georgia

Other

NU-iron unlimited

Products: Direct reduced iron for use as a charge material 	
in our steelmaking operations.

Point Lisas, Trinidad

Corporate Office

Charlotte, North Carolina

STEEL MILLS SEGMENT

Bar MillS

Products: Steel bars, angles and other products for 
automotive, construction, farm machinery, metal buildings, 
furniture and recreational equipment.

Darlington, South Carolina
Norfolk, Nebraska
Jewett, Texas
Plymouth, Utah
Auburn, New York (Nucor Steel Auburn, Inc.)
Birmingham, Alabama (Nucor Steel Birmingham, Inc.)
Kankakee, Illinois (Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc.)
Jackson, Mississippi (Nucor Steel Jackson, Inc.)
Seattle, Washington (Nucor Steel Seattle, Inc.)
Marion, Ohio (Nucor Steel Marion, Inc.)

Sheet Mills

Products: Flat-rolled steel for automotive, appliance, pipe 
and tube, construction and other industries.

Crawfordsville, Indiana
Hickman, Arkansas 
Berkeley County, South Carolina
Decatur, Alabama (Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC)

Nucor-Yamato Steel Company

Products: Super-wide flange steel beams, pilings and 
heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers.

Blytheville, Arkansas

Beam Mill

Products: Wide flange steel beams, pilings and heavy 
structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers.

Berkeley County, South Carolina

Plate Mills

Products: Steel plate for manufacturers of heavy equipment, 
rail cars, ships, barges, refinery tanks, pipe and tube, 
pressure vessels, construction and others.

Hertford County, North Carolina
Tuscaloosa, Alabama (Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc.)

at a glance
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STEEL MILLS SEGMENT

BAR MILLS, SHEET MILLS, STRUCTURAL MILLS AND PLATE MILLS 	
Nucor operates scrap-based steel mills in eighteen facilities. These mills utilize 

modern steelmaking techniques and produce steel at a cost competitive with 

steel manufactured anywhere in the world.

BAR MILLs

Nucor has ten bar mills located in South Carolina, Nebraska, Texas, Utah, New York, Alabama, Illinois, Mississippi, Washington 
and Ohio that produce bars, angles and light structural shapes in carbon and alloy steels. These products have wide usage 
including automotive, construction, farm equipment, metal buildings, furniture and recreational equipment. Four of the bar mills 
were constructed by Nucor between 1969 and 1981. Over the years, Nucor has completed extensive capital projects to keep these 
facilities modernized, including a modernization of the rolling mill at the Nebraska facility, a new melt shop at the Texas facility 
and a new finishing end at the South Carolina facility. In 2001, Nucor purchased substantially all of the assets of Auburn Steel 
Company, Inc.’s steel bar facility in Auburn, New York. This facility currently has the capacity to produce up to 480,000 tons 
of merchant and special bar quality (“SBQ”) steel shapes and rebar. In 2002, Nucor completed the acquisition of substantially 
all the assets of Birmingham Steel Corporation (“Birmingham Steel”). The four bar mills acquired from Birmingham Steel can 
produce in excess of 2,600,000 tons annually. In the second quarter of 2005, Nucor purchased substantially all of the assets  
of Marion Steel Company (“Marion Steel”), which has the capacity to produce up to 450,000 tons annually. The total capacity  
of our ten bar mills is approximately 7,700,000 tons per year. 

SHEET MILLs

The sheet mills produce flat-rolled steel for automotive, appliance, pipe and tube, construction and other industries. The four 
sheet mills are located in Indiana, Arkansas, South Carolina and Alabama. Nucor constructed three of the sheet mills between 
1989 and 1996. The constructed sheet mills utilize thin slab casters to produce hot rolled sheet. In 2002, Nucor’s wholly 
owned subsidiary Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC purchased substantially all the assets of Trico Steel Company, LLC (“Trico”). This 
sheet mill is located in Decatur, Alabama, and has an annual capacity of approximately 2,400,000 tons, initially expanding our 
sheet capacity by 30%. In 2004, Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC purchased the adjacent cold rolling mill of Worthington Industries, 
Inc. (“Worthington”). All four of our sheet mills are now equipped with cold rolling mills for further processing of hot rolled 
sheet. The three greenfield constructed mills are also equipped with galvanizing lines. The total capacity of the four sheet 
mills is approximately 10,800,000 tons per year.

STRUCTURAL MILLS

The structural mills produce wide flange steel beams, pilings and heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction 
companies, manufacturers and steel service centers. In 1988, Nucor and Yamato Kogyo, one of Japan’s major producers  
of wide-flange beams, completed construction of a beam mill located near Blytheville, Arkansas. Nucor owns a 51% interest  
in Nucor-Yamato Steel Company. During 1999, Nucor started operations at its 1,000,000 tons-per-year steel beam mill  
in South Carolina. Both mills use a special continuous casting method that produces a beam blank closer in shape to that  
of the finished beam than traditional methods. Current annual production capacity of our two structural mills is approximately 
3,700,000 tons.

PLATE MILLS

Nucor operates two plate mills. Nucor completed construction of its first plate mill, located in North Carolina, in 2000 with 
the competitive advantages of new, more efficient production technology. This mill produces plate for manufacturers of heavy 
equipment, rail cars, ships, barges, refinery tanks and others. In 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc.,  

Operations Review
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purchased substantially all the assets of Corus Tuscaloosa. The Tuscaloosa mill has an annual capacity of approximately  
1,200,000 tons and complements our product offering with thinner gauges of coiled and cut-to-length plate used in the pipe  
and tube, pressure vessel, transportation and construction industries. Current annual production capacity of our two plate mills  
is approximately 2,800,000 tons.

operations	
Nucor’s steel mills are among the most modern and efficient mills in the United States. Recycled steel scrap and other metallics 
are melted in electric arc furnaces and poured into continuous casting systems. Highly sophisticated rolling mills convert the 
billets, blooms and slabs into rebar, angles, rounds, channels, flats, sheet, beams, plate and other products. 

Production in 2005 was a record 20,332,000 tons, a 3% increase from 19,737,000 tons in 2004. Annual production capacity 
has grown from 120,000 tons in 1970 to a present total of approximately 25,000,000 tons.
 
The operations in the rolling mills are highly automated and require fewer operating employees than older mills. All Nucor steel 
mills have high productivity, which results in employment costs of approximately 8% of the sales dollar. This is lower than the 
employment costs of integrated steel companies producing comparable products. Employee turnover in Nucor mills is extremely 
low. All employees have a significant part of their compensation based on their productivity. Production employees work under 
group incentives that provide increased earnings for increased production. This additional compensation is paid weekly. 
 
Steel mills are large consumers of electricity and gas. Total energy costs increased approximately $7 per ton from 2004 to 2005 
due to higher natural gas and electricity prices. Because of the greater efficiency of Nucor steel mills, these energy costs were still 
less than 10% of the sales dollar in both 2005 and 2004. Nucor is partially hedged against exposure to increases in energy costs.

Scrap and scrap substitutes are the most significant element in the total cost of steel production. The average cost of scrap 
and scrap substitutes used increased 3% to $244 per ton in 2005 from $238 per ton in 2004. A raw material surcharge 
implemented in 2004 has allowed Nucor to maintain operating margins and to meet our commitments to customers in spite  
of highly volatile scrap and scrap substitute costs.

MARKETS AND MARKETING 
Approximately 92% of the eighteen steel mills’ production in 2005 was sold to outside customers and the balance was used 
internally by the Vulcraft, Cold Finish, Building Systems and Fastener divisions. Steel shipments to outside customers in 2005 
were a record 19,020,000 tons, 7% higher than the 17,787,000 tons in 2004. 

Our steel mill customers are primarily manufacturers, steel service centers and fabricators. The sheet mills continue to build 
long-term relationships with contract customers who purchase more value added products. We enter 2006 with approximately 
45% of our sheet mill volume committed to contract customers. Contract terms are typically six to twelve months in length with 
various renewal dates. These contracts are non-cancelable agreements with a pricing formula that varies based on raw material 
costs. Long term, the sheet mills will continue to pursue profitable contract business.

TRADE ISSUES 
Nucor’s continued involvement in trade issues is a critical part of our efforts to support the long-term success of our steel-
making operations. Unfairly traded, illegally dumped steel imports have devastated the U.S. steel industry and its workers. 
In 2002, the Bush Administration implemented Section 201 to help the domestic steel industry recover from the illegal 
and predatory trading practices of foreign competitors. In December 2003, the Administration chose to end prematurely the 
temporary steel safeguard tariffs; however, we are optimistic about the Administration’s commitment to the vigorous enforcement 
of U.S. trade laws and the President’s promise to work with Congress to achieve a long-term solution to illegal dumping and 
other unfair trade practices that necessitated Section 201. Nucor actively supports several organizations that promote free  
and fair trade and that oppose currency manipulation.

ENERGY
Historically, U.S.-based manufacturers have enjoyed competitive energy costs that have allowed them to compete on an equal 
footing in what is becoming more and more a global market. In recent decades, our government has allowed a growing over-
reliance on natural gas for the generation of electricity, while at the same time preventing access to some of the most promising 
areas for natural gas exploration. As a result, natural gas prices have increased from less than $2.00 per mmbtu in the 1990's 
(NYMEX Henry-Hub pricing) to a peak of more than $15.00 per mmbtu in December 2005. Since an increasing share  
of electricity is now generated using natural gas, higher natural gas prices are also increasing costs for consumers of electricity. 

Operations Review
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Nucor actively supports several organizations that are promoting a more rational energy policy. We believe this is critical not only 
for our future business success, but also for the future of the U.S. economy.

NEWER FACILITIES AND EXPANSIONS 
As part of our long-term growth strategy, Nucor continues to invest in existing operations, make greenfield investments utilizing 
advantageous new technologies and pursue acquisitions that are accretive to earnings. Capital expenditures in the steel mill 
segment totaled $201.1 million, $242.5 million and $216.0 million in 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. 

In late 2003, the sheet mill in Berkeley County, South Carolina, completed construction and began trials of a vacuum degasser. 
The degasser has allowed Nucor to expand this facility’s product capacity into deep drawing steel grades. As a result of this 
successful project, in 2005 Nucor announced two additional vacuum degasser projects at the sheet mills in Decatur, Alabama, 
and in Hickman, Arkansas, with a capital budget of less than $20.0 million at each location. Nucor also operates vacuum 
degassers at its sheet mill in Crawfordsville, Indiana, and its SBQ bar mill in Norfolk, Nebraska. We expect to continue 
advancement and participation in more value-added business in the automotive, appliance, lawn and garden, and heating-
ventilation-air conditioning markets in 2006. 

During the third quarter of 2004, Nucor purchased substantially all of the assets of Corus Tuscaloosa for a cash purchase 
price of approximately $89.4 million. This plate mill had an initial annual capacity of about 800,000 tons and complements 
the product offering of our Hertford County plate mill with thinner gauges of coiled and cut-to-length plate. Our continued 
investments in this facility, combined with the benefits of our incentive pay program, have increased capacity to 1,200,000  
tons currently. This acquisition was immediately accretive to earnings and made significant operating contributions in 2004 
and 2005.

Also in the third quarter of 2004, Nucor purchased certain cold rolling assets from Worthington, located adjacent to our 
Decatur, Alabama sheet mill, for a cash purchase price of approximately $80.3 million. The purchased assets include all of the 
buildings, a pickle line, four-stand tandem mill, temper mill and annealing furnaces. This modern 1,000,000-ton cold mill with 
600,000 tons of annealing capacity was constructed in 1998 and together with our vacuum degasser project described above 
complements our strategy to serve value-added customers in the Southeast market. 

In September 2004, Nucor acquired the assets of an idled direct reduced iron (“DRI”) plant located in Louisiana. These assets 
have been moved to Trinidad and construction is well under way. We expect DRI production to begin in the fourth quarter  
of 2006 with an annual capacity of 1,800,000 metric tons per year. The Trinidad site benefits from a low cost supply of natural 
gas and favorable logistics for receipt of Brazilian iron ore and shipment of DRI to the U.S. This new entity is named Nu-Iron 
Unlimited (“Nu-Iron”) and has a capital budget of approximately $225.0 million.

In June 2005, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Marion, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets of Marion 
Steel for a cash purchase price of approximately $110.7 million. The facility is a bar products mill that manufactures angles, 
flats, rebar, rounds and signposts. Located in Marion, Ohio, the mill is in close proximity to 60% of the steel consumption 
in the United States. The facility has already grown its capacity from 400,000 tons to 450,000 tons largely as a result  
of our incentive-based compensation program.

COMMERCIALIZATION OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES 
In April 2002, Nucor entered a joint venture with The Rio Tinto Group, Mitsubishi Corporation and Chinese steel maker 
Shougang Corporation to construct a commercial HIsmelt® plant in Kwinana, Western Australia. The HIsmelt process converts 
iron ore fines and coal fines to liquid metal, eliminating the need for a blast furnace, sinter/pellet plants and coke ovens. Nucor 
has a 25% interest in the joint venture that owns the HIsmelt commercial plant. Construction was completed in 2005 and  
on January 24, 2006, the HIsmelt team completed a 48 consecutive day campaign of iron-making. This plant has an initial 
annual capacity of 800,000 metric tons and is expandable to over 1,500,000 metric tons at a very attractive capital cost.

Nucor began operations of its 100% owned Castrip facility in Crawfordsville, Indiana, in May 2002. This facility uses the 
breakthrough technology of strip casting, to which Nucor holds exclusive rights in the United States and Brazil. Strip casting 
involves the direct casting of molten steel into final shape and thickness without further hot or cold rolling. This process allows 
lower investment and operating costs, reduced energy consumption and smaller scale plants than can be economically built with 
current technology. This process also reduces the overall environmental impact of producing steel by generating significantly 
lower emissions, particularly NOx. In 2005, Nucor announced that the Castrip process had achieved commercial viability and 
that Blytheville, Arkansas, had been selected as the second Nucor location for a Castrip operation in the United States. 
Nucor expects to establish at least one joint venture partner overseas in 2006 to utilize the Castrip technology. 

Operations Review
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In April 2003, Nucor entered a joint venture with Companhia Vale do Rio Doce (“CVRD”) to construct and operate an 
environmentally friendly pig iron project in northern Brazil. The project, named Ferro Gusa Carajás S.A. (“FGC”), will utilize two 
conventional mini-blast furnaces to produce about 380,000 metric tons of pig iron per year in its initial phase, using iron ore from 
CVRD’s Carajás mine in northern Brazil. The charcoal source will be exclusively from eucalyptus trees grown in a cultivated forest 
of 82,000 acres with the total project encompassing approximately 200,000 acres in northern Brazil. The cultivated forest removes 
more carbon dioxide from the atmosphere than the blast furnace emits. Production of pig iron began in the fourth quarter of 2005. 
It is anticipated that Nucor will purchase all of the production of the plant. 

The FGC project, together with the Nu-Iron and HIsmelt projects discussed above, represent the initial steps in Nucor’s raw 
materials strategy to control 6,000,000 to 7,000,000 tons per year of our iron units consumption. 
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STEEL PRODUCTS SEGMENT

VULCRAFT Nucor is the nation’s largest producer of open-web steel 

joists, joist girders and steel deck, which are used for non-residential 

building construction.

operations	
Steel joists and joist girders are produced and marketed nationally through seven Vulcraft facilities located in South Carolina, 
Nebraska, Alabama, Texas, Indiana, Utah and New York. Current annual production capacity is approximately 715,000 tons. 
In 2005, Vulcraft produced 554,000 tons of steel joists and joist girders, an increase of 6% from the 522,000 tons 
produced in 2004.

Material costs, primarily steel, were approximately 50% of the joist sales dollar in 2005 (53% in 2004). Vulcraft obtained 99% 
of its steel requirements for joists and joist girders from the Nucor bar mills in both 2005 and 2004. Freight costs for joists and 
joist girders were less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2005 and 2004. Vulcraft maintains an extensive fleet of trucks to ensure 
and control on-time delivery.

The Vulcraft facilities in South Carolina, Nebraska, Alabama, Texas, Indiana and New York produce steel deck. Current deck 
annual production capacity is approximately 430,000 tons. Vulcraft steel deck sales increased 4% from 364,000 tons in 2004  
to a record 380,000 tons in 2005. Coiled sheet steel was approximately 62% of the steel deck sales dollar in 2005 (54%  
in 2004). In 2005 and 2004, Vulcraft obtained 99% of its steel requirements for steel deck production from the Nucor sheet 
mills. For 2005 and 2004, freight costs for deck were less than 10% of the sales dollar.

Production employees of Vulcraft work with a group incentive system that provides increased compensation each week  
for increased performance.

MARKETS AND MARKETING 
Steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are used extensively as part of the roof and floor support systems in manufacturing 
buildings, retail stores, shopping centers, warehouses, schools, churches, hospitals and, to a lesser extent, in multi-story 
buildings and apartments. Building support systems using joists, joist girders and steel deck are frequently more economical  
than other systems.

Steel joists and joist girder sales are obtained by competitive bidding. Vulcraft quotes on a significant percentage of the 
domestic buildings using steel joists and joist girders as part of the support systems. In 2005, Vulcraft supplied more than  
40% of total domestic sales of steel joists. Steel deck is specified in the majority of buildings using steel joists and joist  
girders. In 2005, Vulcraft supplied more than 30% of total domestic sales of steel deck.

Sales of steel joists, joist girders and steel deck are dependent on the non-residential building construction market.

Operations Review
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COLD FINISH AND FASTENER Nucor manufactures a variety of 

products using steel from Nucor mills.

COLD FINISH

Nucor Cold Finish is the largest producer of cold finished bars in the United States and has facilities in Nebraska, South Carolina, 
Utah and Wisconsin. Three of these facilities were originally constructed by Nucor between 1978 and 1983. In February 2005, 
Nucor purchased the assets of Fort Howard Steel, Inc.’s (“Fort Howard Steel”) operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin. This facility 
has approximately 140,000 tons of annual capacity. The total capacity of the four facilities is approximately 490,000 tons per year. 

These facilities produce cold drawn and turned, ground and polished steel bars that are used extensively for shafting and 
precision machined parts. Nucor Cold Finish produces rounds, hexagons, flats and squares in carbon, alloy and leaded steels. 
These bars, in turn, are purchased by the automotive, farm machinery, hydraulic, appliance and electric motor industries,  
as well as by service centers. Nucor Cold Finish bars are used in tens of thousands of products. A few examples include anchor 
bolts, farm machinery, hydraulic cylinders, shafting for air conditioner compressors, ceiling fan motors, garage door openers, 
electric motors and lawn mowers. 

All four facilities are among the most modern in the world and use in-line electronic testing to ensure outstanding quality.  
Nucor Cold Finish obtains most of its steel from the Nucor bar mills. This factor, along with the efficient facilities using the 
latest technology, results in a highly competitive cost structure.

In 2005, sales of cold finished steel products were  
a record 342,000 tons, an increase of 26% from 2004’s 
271,000 tons. The total cold finish market is estimated  
to be approximately 2,000,000 tons. The Wisconsin facility 
represents a continuation of our successful value-added 
strategy and expands our presence in the midwest market. 
Nucor Cold Finish anticipates opportunities for significant 
increases in sales and earnings during the next several years.

Fastener

Nucor Fastener’s state-of-the-art steel bolt-making facility  
in Indiana produces standard steel hexhead cap screws,  
hex bolts, structural bolts and custom-engineered fasteners. 
Fasteners are used in a broad range of markets, including 
automotive, machine tools, farm implements, construction 
and military applications. 

Annual capacity is more than 75,000 tons, which is less than 
an estimated 10% of the total market for these products. The 
modern facility allows Nucor Fastener to maintain competitive 
pricing in a market currently dominated by foreign suppliers. 
This operation is highly automated and has fewer employees 
than comparable facilities. Nucor Fastener obtains much  
of its steel from the Nucor bar mills.
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BUILDING SYSTEMS AND LIGHT GAUGE STEEL FRAMING Nucor 

manufactures metal buildings and steel framing systems for commercial, 

industrial and residential construction markets.

BUILDING SYSTEMS

Nucor Building Systems produces metal building systems and components in Indiana, South Carolina and Texas. The annual 
capacity is more than 145,000 tons. The size of the buildings that can be produced ranges from less than 500 square feet 
to more than 1,000,000 square feet. 

Complete metal building packages can be customized and combined with other materials such as glass, wood and masonry 
to produce a cost effective, aesthetically pleasing building designed for customers’ special requirements. The buildings are sold 
primarily through an independent builder distribution network in order to provide fast-track, customized solutions for building owners. 

Building systems sales in 2005 were a record 114,000 tons (113,000 tons in 2004). The primary markets are commercial, 
industrial and institutional buildings, including distribution centers, automobile dealerships, retail centers, schools, warehouses 
and manufacturing facilities. Nucor Building Systems obtains a significant portion of its steel requirements from the Nucor bar 
and sheet mills.

LIGHT GAUGE STEEL FRAMING 

Nucon Steel specializes in load bearing light gauge  
steel framing systems for the commercial and residential 
construction markets with fabrication facilities in Texas and 
Georgia. Nucon also sells its proprietary products through  
a growing network of authorized fabricators located 
throughout the United States. 

In 2004, Nucon introduced two new low cost automated 
fabrication systems for residential construction: the NuWall 
automated wall panel system and the NuTruss automated 
truss system. Nucon uses these systems in its residential wall 
panel and truss fabrication facility in Texas and has formed  
a separate group within Nucon to sell and license the systems 
to third parties. Nucor plans to continue to aggressively 
broaden Nucon Steel’s opportunities through geographic 
expansion and the introduction of new products.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Nucor is a domestic manufacturer of steel and steel products whose customers are located primarily in the United States. 
Additionally, Nucor is the nation’s largest recycler. Nucor reports its results in two segments, steel mills and steel products. 

Principal products from the steel mills segment are hot-rolled steel (angles, rounds, flats, channels, sheet, wide-flange beams, 
pilings, billets, blooms, beam blanks and plate) and cold-rolled steel. Principal products from the steel products segment are  
steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, cold finished steel, steel fasteners, metal building systems and light gauge steel framing.  
Hot-rolled steel is manufactured principally from scrap, utilizing electric arc furnaces, continuous casting and automated 
rolling mills. Cold-rolled steel, cold finished steel, steel joists and joist girders, and steel fasteners are manufactured by further 
processing of hot-rolled steel. Steel deck is manufactured from cold-rolled steel. In 2005, approximately 92% of the steel mills 
segment production was sold to non-affiliated customers; the remainder was used internally by the steel products segment. 

During the last five years, Nucor’s sales have increased 167% from $4.76 billion in 2000 to $12.70 billion in 2005. 
Average sales price per ton has increased 46% from $425 in 2000 to $621 in 2005. Total tons sold to external customers 
have increased 83% from 11,189,000 tons in 2000 to 20,465,000 tons in 2005. This growth has been generated through 
acquisitions, optimizing existing operations and developing traditional greenfield projects using new technologies. Nucor 
achieved record sales and net earnings in 2005 due to historically high selling prices, margins and shipments, which  
were aided by our product line diversity. 

In addition to Nucor’s traditional strategy of growing by developing greenfield projects and continually improving existing 
operations, Nucor’s focus over the past several years has included growing profitably through acquisitions. In the steel mills 
segment, the capacity of our bar mills has more than doubled over the past five years, increasing from 3,000,000 tons  
in 2000 to 7,700,000 tons in 2005. This growth was driven by the acquisition of the assets of Auburn Steel in 2001,  
the assets of Birmingham Steel’s four bar mills in late 2002, and the assets of Marion Steel in 2005. These acquisitions  
were complemented by ongoing productivity gains obtained at existing bar mills.

The capacity of our sheet mills has increased more than 80% from 5,900,000 tons in 2000 to 10,800,000 tons in 2005  
due to the acquisition and start-up in late 2002 of our sheet mill in Decatur, Alabama, as well as by continued productivity 
advances at our three other sheet mills. The sheet mills are well positioned to advance our strategic plan for greater 
participation in higher value-added sheet markets.
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In 2000, Nucor’s plate mill in Hertford County, North Carolina, was in the early stages of start-up and produced 20,000 tons. 
With the successful start-up of the North Carolina facility and the acquisition of the assets of the Corus Tuscaloosa plate mill 
in 2004, Nucor’s plate capacity is now approximately 2,800,000 tons, allowing us to continue to benefit from the current 
robust plate market conditions.

Nucor has also increased its participation in downstream steel products via acquisitions and joint ventures. With the acquisition 
of Fort Howard Steel’s operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin, in 2005, Nucor became the largest U.S. producer of cold finished bars.

Nucor established rebar fabrication joint ventures in 2004 and 2005, forming partnerships to grow in the reinforcing steel 
construction markets with two leaders in the rebar fabrication industry – Harris Steel Group, Inc. and Ambassador Steel 
Corporation. In 2004, we formed a joint venture with Harris Steel Group to serve the western and northeastern U.S. rebar 
fabrication markets. This joint venture continues to grow and to generate strong returns. In 2005, we entered into a rebar 
fabrication joint venture with Ambassador Steel that will allow us to expand Nucor’s rebar fabrication presence into the central 
and southern regions of the country. This venture, Nufab Rebar, completed its first acquisition last May, purchasing a rebar 
fabricator serving Louisiana, Mississippi and the Florida panhandle region.

Over the past five years, we have strengthened Nucor’s position as North America’s most diversified steel producer. 

 

COMPARISON OF 2005 TO 2004

NET SALES	
Net sales for 2005 increased 12% to $12.70 billion, compared with $11.38 billion in 2004. The average sales price per  
ton increased 4% from $595 in 2004 to $621 in 2005, while total shipments to outside customers increased 7%. In the 
steel mills segment, net sales to external customers increased 9% from $10.11 billion in 2004 to $11.06 billion in 2005. 
Approximately 75% of the sales increase was due to higher sales volume resulting from stronger business conditions for bar, 
plate and structural products, as well as acquisitions made in 2004 and 2005. The remaining 25% of the increase in sales was 
due to higher average selling prices. Net sales to external customers in the steel products segment increased 29% from $1.27 
billion in 2004 to $1.64 billion in 2005. Approximately 60% of the increase was due to higher average selling prices and 
approximately 40% of the increase was due to increased volume, reflecting a stronger non-residential construction market. 

Nucor established new annual tonnage records in the steel mills segment for total steel shipments and steel shipments  
to outside customers in 2005. Total steel shipments, including those to the steel products segment, increased 6%  
to 20,669,000 tons in 2005, compared with 19,464,000 tons in the previous year. Steel sales to outside customers increased 
7% to 19,020,000 tons in 2005, compared with 17,787,000 tons in 2004. In the steel products segment, production and 
shipment volumes increased over the prior year across all major product lines. Steel joist production for 2005 was 554,000 
tons, compared with 522,000 tons in the previous year. Steel deck sales were a record 380,000 tons in 2005, compared with 
364,000 tons in 2004. Cold finished steel sales were a record 342,000 tons in 2005, compared with 271,000 tons in the 
previous year aided by the successful integration of the Fort Howard Steel acquisition.

DIVERSIFIED PRODUCT MIX
Total Tons Sold to Outside Customers in 2005

Sheet
Bar
Structural
Plate
Downstream steel products, including
steel joists, steel deck, cold finish
and building systems

11%

39%

14%

29%

7%
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COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 
The major component of cost of products sold is raw material costs.  
The average volume of raw materials used increased approximately  
5% from 2004 to 2005, consisting of an increase of 4% in the steel mills 
segment and an increase of 14% in the steel products segment. The average 
price of raw materials increased approximately 5% from 2004 to 2005. 
The average price of raw materials in the steel mills segment and the steel 
products segment increased 3% and 25%, respectively, from 2004 to 2005. 
The average scrap and scrap substitute cost per ton used in our steel mills 
segment was $244 in 2005, an increase of 3% from $238 in 2004.  
By the fourth quarter of 2005, the average scrap and scrap substitute  
cost per ton used had decreased to $240 compared with the quarterly high 
of $278 in the fourth quarter of 2004. The average scrap cost per ton 
purchased decreased $40 (14%) from December 2004 to December 2005. 

Primarily as a result of the decreases in the cost of scrap and scrap 
substitutes during the year, Nucor incurred a credit to value inventories  
using the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method of accounting of $151.6 million  
in 2005, compared with a charge of $375.9 million in 2004 when scrap 
prices were increasing.

Another significant component of cost of products sold for the steel mills segment is energy costs, since steel mills are large 
consumers of electricity and natural gas. Total energy costs increased approximately $7 per ton from 2004 to 2005 as natural 
gas prices increased approximately 31% and electricity prices increased approximately 19%. Due to the efficiency of Nucor’s 
steel mills, however, energy costs remained less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2005 and 2004. We expect that our total energy 
costs will remain high in 2006. Nucor is hedging a portion of its exposure to the variability of future cash flows for forecasted 
natural gas purchases over various time periods not exceeding two years. In 2005, the settlement of these hedging transactions 
reduced cost of products sold by approximately $12.4 million. In addition to these hedges, Nucor has entered into natural gas 
purchase contracts that commit Nucor to purchase $17.6 million, $22.7 million and $21.5 million of natural gas for production 
in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, and $562.3 million between 2009 and 2028. These natural gas purchase contracts will 
primarily supply our direct reduced iron (“DRI”) facility in Trinidad.  

In December 2000, Nucor entered into a consent decree with the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) 
and certain states in order to resolve alleged environmental violations. Under the terms of this decree, Nucor is conducting 
testing at some of its facilities, performing corrective action where necessary and piloting certain pollution control technologies.

Nucor revises estimates for environmental reserves as additional information becomes available and projects are completed.  
In 2005, Nucor made approximately $12.2 million in cash payments for remedial efforts and reduced reserves by approximately 
$9.4 million ($0.4 million and $10.0 million, respectively, in 2004). The most significant components of the decreases  
of reserves in 2005 are related to successful implementation of alternate environmental technologies that achieve full 
compliance with the agreement between Nucor and the USEPA through minor operational changes. The most significant 
components of the decreases in 2004 related to an agreement with the USEPA that certain technologies identified in the 
consent decree are not feasible and a favorable court ruling that implicated additional potentially responsible parties for  
the cleanup of an off-site waste-recycling facility.

GROSS MARGIN	
Gross margins increased slightly from 20% in 2004 to 21% in 2005. In addition to the events and trends discussed above, 
gross margins are affected by pre-operating and start-up costs. Nucor defines pre-operating and start-up costs, all of which  
are expensed, as the losses attributable to facilities or major projects that are either under construction or in the early stages  
of operation. Once these facilities or projects have attained a utilization rate that is consistent with our similar operating 
facilities, they are no longer considered by Nucor to be in start-up. Pre-operating and start-up costs of new facilities decreased  
to $14.4 million in 2005, compared with $28.8 million in 2004. In 2005, these costs primarily related to the relocation of our 
DRI facility to Trinidad and its refurbishment and to our HIsmelt project in Australia. In 2004, these costs primarily related 
to the continuing start-up of the Castrip facility at our sheet mill in Crawfordsville, Indiana. Late in 2004, the Castrip process 
achieved commercial viability; therefore, the costs associated with this facility have not been included in start-up costs in 2005. 



23
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004

Interest expense	 $36,571	 $29,335

Interest income	 (32,370)	 (6,983)

Interest expense, net	 $  4,201	 $22,352

MARKETING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 
The major components of marketing, administrative and other expenses are freight and profit sharing costs. Unit freight costs 
increased 12% from 2004 to 2005 primarily due to higher fuel costs. Profit sharing costs, which are based upon and fluctuate 
with pre-tax earnings, increased approximately 6% from 2004 to 2005. In 2005, profit sharing costs included $206.0 million  
for contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees, compared with $172.3 million  
in 2004. In both 2004 and 2005, all employees except for senior officers received a special cash bonus of $2,000 in addition  
to their regular profit-sharing payments. These extraordinary bonuses were paid to employees for the achievement of record 
earnings during the year, resulting in additional profit sharing costs of approximately $22.6 million in 2005 and $21.0 million 
in 2004. Profit sharing costs also fluctuate based on Nucor’s achievement of certain financial performance goals, including 
comparisons of Nucor’s financial performance to peers in the steel industry and to other high performing companies.

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Net interest expense is detailed below (in thousands): 

Gross interest expense increased approximately 25% primarily due to increased average interest rates, accompanied  
by an increase in average long-term debt. Gross interest income increased more than fourfold due to increases in average  
short-term investments and to a lesser extent due to increases in average interest rates.

MINORITY INTERESTS 
Minority interests represent the income attributable to the minority partners of Nucor’s joint venture, Nucor-Yamato Steel 
Company. Income attributable to minority interests increased from $80.9 million in 2004 to $110.7 million in 2005. Cash 
distributions to minority interests increased from $84.9 million in 2004 to $89.9 million in 2005. Under the partnership 
agreement, the minimum amount of cash to be distributed each year to the partners of Nucor-Yamato Steel Company is the 
amount needed by each partner to pay applicable U.S. federal and state income taxes. In some years, such as 2004, the 
amount of cash distributed to minority interests exceeds amounts allocated to minority interests based on mutual agreement 
of the general partners; however, the cumulative amount of cash distributed to partners is less than the cumulative net  
earnings of the partnership.

OTHER INCOME 
In 2005, Nucor received $9.2 million in settlement of claims against 
third parties related to environmental matters. Nucor has made claims  
for reimbursement of additional amounts. No amounts have been recorded 
for such reimbursements, if any, that may be received. In 2004, Nucor 
sold equipment resulting in pre-tax gains of $1.6 million.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 
Nucor had an effective tax rate of 35.02% in 2005 compared with 
35.22% in 2004. In both 2005 and 2004, Nucor recorded refundable 
state income tax credits of $10.4 million. The Internal Revenue  
Service is currently examining Nucor’s 2002 and 2003 federal income  
tax returns. Management believes that it has adequately provided 
for any adjustments that may arise from this audit.

NET EARNINGS AND RETURN ON EQUITY  
Net earnings and earnings per share for 2005 increased 17% and  
18%, respectively, to a record $1.31 billion and $8.26 per diluted share, 
compared with $1.12 billion and $7.02 per diluted share in 2004.  
Net earnings as a percentage of net sales were 10.3% in 2005 compared 
with 9.9% in 2004. The 18% increase in earnings per share also reflects the effect of repurchasing approximately 5.6 million 
shares of outstanding common stock during 2005. Return on average stockholders’ equity was 33.9% and 38.7% in 2005  
and 2004, respectively.
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COMPARISON OF 2004 TO 2003

NET SALES 
Net sales for 2004 increased 82% to $11.38 billion, compared with $6.27 billion in 2003. The average sales price per 
ton increased 66% from $359 in 2003 to $595 in 2004, while total shipments to outside customers increased 9%. In the 
steel mills segment, net sales to external customers increased 86% from $5.45 billion in 2003 to $10.11 billion in 2004. 
Approximately 85% of the increase was due to higher average selling prices resulting from increased demand for our products, 
which affected base prices, and the implementation of a raw materials surcharge to address historically high scrap costs. The 
remaining 15% of the sales increase was due to higher sales volume resulting from increased demand and the additional 
production capacity obtained from the acquisition of assets from Corus Tuscaloosa and Worthington in the second half of 2004 
and the ramp-up of production at Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC throughout the year. Net sales to external customers in the steel 
products segment were $819.7 million in 2003, compared with $1.27 billion in 2004, an increase of 55%. Approximately  
75% of the increase was due to higher average selling prices, and approximately 25% of the increase was due to increased 
volume, reflecting an improved non-residential construction market. 

Total steel shipments, including those to the steel products segment, increased 10% to 19,464,000 tons in 2004, compared 
with 17,656,000 tons in the previous year. Steel sales to outside customers increased 9% to 17,787,000 tons in 2004, 
compared with 16,263,000 tons in 2003. In the steel products segment, production and shipment volumes increased in 2004 
over 2003 across all major product lines. Steel joist production for 2004 was 522,000 tons, compared with 503,000 tons  
in the previous year. Steel deck sales were 364,000 tons, compared with 353,000 tons in 2003. Cold finished steel sales  
were 271,000 tons in 2004, compared with 237,000 tons in the previous year. 

COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD 
The average volume of raw materials used increased 12% from 2003 to 2004, consisting of an increase of 12% in the steel 
mills segment and an increase of 14% in the steel products segment. The average price of raw materials increased 67% from 
2003 to 2004. The average price of raw materials in the steel mills segment and the steel products segment increased 71% 
and 24%, respectively, from 2003 to 2004. The average scrap and scrap substitute cost per ton used in our steel mills segment 
was $238 in 2004, an increase of 74% from $137 in 2003. 

As a result of the increases in the cost of scrap and scrap substitutes, Nucor incurred a charge to value inventories using  
the LIFO method of accounting of $375.9 million in 2004, compared with a charge of $115.0 million in 2003.

Total energy costs per ton were flat from 2003 to 2004 as higher natural gas prices of approximately 8% were offset by increased 
production efficiency at our steel mills. These energy costs were less than 10% of the sales dollar in 2004 and 2003. 

Nucor made approximately $19.0 million in cash payments for environmental remedial efforts during 2003 and reduced 
reserves by approximately $8.3 million. In 2004, Nucor made approximately $0.4 million in cash payments for remedial efforts 
and reduced reserves by approximately $10.0 million. The most significant components of the decreases of reserves in 2003 
and 2004 related to an agreement with the USEPA that certain technologies identified in the consent decree are not feasible and  
a favorable court ruling that implicated additional potentially responsible parties for the cleanup of an off-site waste-recycling facility.

GROSS MARGIN 
Gross margins increased from 4% in 2003 to 20% in 2004. In addition to the events and trends discussed above, gross 
margins improved due to the turnaround achieved at our sheet mill in Decatur, Alabama, and the plate mill in Hertford County, 
North Carolina, and to the acquisitions we made in the third quarter of 2004. Pre-operating and start-up costs of new facilities 
decreased to $28.8 million in 2004, compared with $117.5 million in 2003. In 2004, these costs primarily related to the 
continuing start-up of the Castrip facility at our sheet mill in Crawfordsville, Indiana. In 2003, these costs primarily related  
to the start-up of the sheet mill in Decatur, Alabama, and the Castrip facility. 

MARKETING, ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 
Unit freight costs increased 2% from 2003 to 2004. Profit sharing costs, which are based upon and fluctuate with pre-tax 
earnings, increased fifteen-fold from 2003 to 2004. In 2004, profit sharing costs included $172.3 million for contributions  
to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees, compared with $8.9 million in 2003. Profit sharing 
costs in 2004 included an additional $21.0 million in extraordinary bonuses paid to employees for the achievement  
of record earnings during the year. All employees except for senior officers received two special cash bonuses  
of $1,000 each in July and November in addition to their regular profit-sharing payments.
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Year Ended December 31,	 2004	 2003

Interest expense	 $29,335	 $27,152

Interest income	 (6,983)	 (2,525)

Interest expense, net	 $22,352	 $24,627

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Net interest expense is detailed below (in thousands):

Interest expense, net of interest income, decreased from 2003 to 2004 primarily due to an increase in average short-term 
investments, partially offset by an increase in average long-term debt.

MINORITY INTERESTS 
Income attributable to minority interests increased from $23.9 million in 2003 to $80.9 million in 2004. Cash distributions  
to minority interests increased from $63.3 million in 2003 to $84.9 million in 2004.

OTHER INCOME 
In 2004 and 2003, Nucor sold equipment resulting in pre-tax gains of $1.6 million and $4.4 million, respectively. In 2003, 
Nucor received $7.1 million, related to graphite electrodes anti-trust settlements. Producers of graphite electrodes, which are 
used by Nucor to deliver energy in electric arc furnaces, have entered into several settlement agreements with their customers 
as the result of a price fixing investigation by the Department of Justice that became public in 1997. No settlements have  
been received since 2003, and we do not expect to receive any further graphite electrodes settlements. 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 
Nucor had an effective tax rate of 35.22% in 2004 compared with 6.12% in 2003. The higher tax rate in 2004 is primarily 
due to the effect of increased pre-tax earnings, partially offset by the resolution of certain tax issues in the second half of 2004. 
In 2004 and 2003, Nucor recorded refundable state income tax credits of $10.4 million and $10.5 million, respectively. 

NET EARNINGS AND RETURN ON EQUITY 
Net earnings and earnings per share for 2004 increased approximately eighteen-fold to $1.12 billion and $7.02 per diluted 
share, respectively, compared with $62.8 million and $0.40 per diluted share in 2003. Net earnings as a percentage  
of net sales were 9.9% in 2004 compared with 1.0% in 2003. Return on average equity was 38.7% and 2.7% in 2004  
and 2003, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flows provided by operating activities provide us with a significant source of liquidity. When needed, we also have external 
short-term financing sources available including the issuance of commercial paper and borrowings under our bank credit 
facilities. We also issue long-term debt from time to time. We have earned long-term debt ratings of A+ by Standard and Poor’s 
and A1 by Moody’s Investors Services, the highest ratings of any metals and mining company in North America. We believe  
our strong financial position and our industry-high credit rating provide us with flexibility and significant capacity to obtain  
additional capital on a cost-effective basis.

We anticipate that cash flows from operations and our existing borrowing capacity will be sufficient to fund expected normal 
operating costs, working capital, dividends and capital expenditures for our existing facilities. Any future significant acquisitions 
could require additional financing from external sources.

During 2005, cash and short-term investments increased 136% from $779.0 million to $1.84 billion and working capital 
increased 34% from $2.11 billion to $2.82 billion. The current ratio increased from 3.0 at December 31, 2004 to 3.2  
at December 31, 2005. Approximately $144.1 million and $71.1 million of the cash and short-term investments position  
at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively, was held by our 51%-owned joint venture, Nucor-Yamato Steel 
Company. We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with unconsolidated 
special purpose entities. Nucor uses derivative financial instruments from time-to-time primarily to manage the exposure  
to price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process and to manage exposure to changes in interest 
rates on outstanding debt instruments.
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December 31,	 2005	 2004

Cash and short-term investments	 $1,837,510	 $779,049

Cash and short-term investments held by Nucor-Yamato	 144,079	 71,081

Working capital	 2,815,854	 2,109,158

Current ratio	 3.2	 3.0

(in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Nucor generated cash provided by operating activities of a record  
$2.14 billion in 2005 compared with $1.02 billion in 2004, an increase  
of 108%. This increase was the result of the 17% increase in net earnings 
and the increase in changes in operating assets and liabilities (exclusive  
of acquisitions) that provided cash of $357.6 million in 2005 compared with 
using cash of $580.8 million in 2004. Accounts receivable increased $19.4 
million in 2005 versus an increase of $354.9 million in 2004. Net sales  
in the fourth quarter of 2004 were significantly higher than in the fourth 
quarter of the previous year, resulting in more accounts receivable at year-
end. In 2004, inventories increased to a record high level due to increased 
quantities and increased purchase costs. Inventories decreased in 2005 due 
to reduced inventory levels accompanied by purchase costs declining from 
the record highs experienced in the fourth quarter of 2004.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Our business is capital intensive; therefore, cash used in investing activities 
primarily represents capital expenditures for new facilities, the expansion 
and upgrading of existing facilities and the acquisition of the assets  
of other companies. Cash used in investing activities decreased slightly  
to $527.5 million in 2005 compared with $534.9 million in 2004. 
Nucor invested $331.5 million in new facilities (exclusive of aquisitions) 
and expansion or upgrading of existing facilities in 2005 compared 
with $285.9 million in 2004.

Existing cash and short-term investments funded the acquisitions of the assets of Fort Howard Steel and Marion Steel in 2005  
and of Corus Tuscaloosa and Worthington in 2004. Nucor expects to continue to pursue profitable growth through acquisitions.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash used in financing activities increased to $550.7 million in 2005 compared with $61.1 million in 2004. In 2005,  
Nucor increased its base dividend and paid a quarterly supplemental dividend, resulting in dividend payments tripling from 
$69.7 million in 2004 to $209.8 million in 2005. In 2004, Nucor issued $20.0 million aggregate principal amount  
of variable rate industrial revenue bonds due 2020. 

During 2005, the board of directors reactivated the previously approved stock repurchase program, and Nucor repurchased 
approximately 5.6 million shares of common stock at a cost of approximately $291.2 million. In December 2005, the board 
approved the repurchase of up to an additional 10.0 million shares. A total of approximately 12.9 million shares remains 
authorized for repurchase. There were no repurchases during 2004. 

The percentage of long-term debt to total capital (long-term debt plus minority interests plus stockholders’ equity) was  
17% and 20% at year-end 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

In 2005, Nucor entered into a new five-year unsecured revolving credit facility maturing in June 2010 that provides for  
up to $700.0 million in revolving loans. Up to the equivalent of $600.0 million of the new credit facility will be available 
for foreign currency loans, and up to $450.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit. The new credit facility 
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			  Payments Due By Period

Contractual Obligations	 Total	 2006	   2007 - 2008	 2009 - 2010	 2011 and thereafter

Long-term debt 	 $   923,550	 $       1,250	 $         —	 $180,400	 $   741,900

Estimated interest on long-term debt(1)	 514,778	 42,048	 84,051	 62,776	 325,903

Operating leases	 13,402	 3,041	 1,976	 660	 7,725

Raw material purchase commitments(2)	 2,724,388	 769,146	 561,575	 603,921	 789,746

Utility purchase commitments(2)	 928,999	 170,972	 148,710	 73,625	 535,692

Other unconditional purchase obligations(3)	 142,842	 140,601	 2,241	 —  	 —

Other long-term obligations(4) 	 118,233	 7,247	 6,309	 1,947	 102,730

Total contractual obligations	 $5,366,192	 $1,134,305	 $804,862	 $923,329	 $2,503,696

may be increased by up to $300.0 million at the election of the Company in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit 
agreement. No borrowings were outstanding under the credit facility as of December 31, 2005. In connection with the new 	
credit facility, in 2005 Nucor terminated (a) a $125.0 million 364-day revolver maturing in September 2005, and (b) a $300.0 
million multi-currency revolver maturing October 2007. At the date of termination, there were no borrowings under either 
terminated credit facility.

MARKET RISK 
All of Nucor’s industrial revenue bonds have variable interest rates that are adjusted weekly or annually. These industrial revenue 
bonds represent 43% of Nucor’s long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2005. The remaining 57% of Nucor’s long-term 
debt is at fixed rates. Future changes in interest rates are not expected to significantly impact earnings. From time to time, 
Nucor makes use of interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2005, there were no such contracts 
outstanding. Nucor’s investment practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short maturities. As a result, 	
we do not expect changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the value of our investment securities.

Nucor also uses derivative financial instruments from time to time primarily to manage its exposure to price risk related 	
to natural gas purchases used in the production process. Nucor, generally, does not enter into derivative instruments for any 
purpose other than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that will be purchased and consumed 
in future periods and hedging the exposures related to changes in the fair value of outstanding fixed rate debt instruments. 	
Nucor recognizes all derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value.

Nucor has ventures in Brazil and Australia that are in the early stages of operations and owns the DRI facility in Trinidad that 
is currently under construction. Accordingly, Nucor is exposed to the effects of currency fluctuations in those countries. Nucor 
presently does not hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS  
The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2005, 	
for the periods presented (in thousands).

(1) Interest is estimated using applicable rates at December 31, 2005, for Nucor’s outstanding fixed and variable rate debt.

(2) Nucor enters into contracts for the purchase of scrap and scrap substitutes, iron-ore, electricity, natural gas and other raw materials and

     related services, a significant portion of which pertain to our DRI facility in Trinidad. These contracts include multi-year commitments and 	

     minimum annual purchase requirements and are valued at prices in effect on December 31, 2005, or according to the contract terms. These 	

     contracts are part of normal operations and are reflected in historical operating cash flow trends. We do not believe such commitments 	

     will adversely affect our liquidity position. 

(3) Purchase obligations include commitments for capital expenditures on operating machinery and equipment. 

(4) Other long-term obligations include amounts associated with Nucor’s early retiree medical benefits and management compensation. 

  

DIVIDENDS 
Nucor has increased its cash dividend every year since it began paying dividends in 1973. In 2005, in addition to raising 	
the base dividend, the board of directors implemented a supplemental dividend based on Nucor’s strong performance in 2004. 
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Nucor paid dividends of $1.33 per share in 2005 compared with $0.44 per share in 2004. In February 2006, the board of directors 
announced an increase in the base dividend to $0.20 per share and in the supplemental dividend to $0.50 per share, resulting 
in an annualized dividend rate of $2.80 per share. The supplemental dividend of $0.50 per share represents a portion of a total 
supplemental dividend estimated to be $2.00 per share to be paid over the next four quarterly dividend payments. The payment  
of any future supplemental dividends will depend upon many factors, including Nucor’s earnings, cash flows and financial position.

OUTLOOK	
Our objective is to maintain a strong balance sheet while pursuing profitable growth. We expect to obtain additional capacity 
through expansions at our existing steel mills, greenfield construction utilizing advantageous new technologies and future 
acquisitions. Capital expenditures are currently projected to be approximately $400.0 million in 2006, an increase of 21%  
over 2005. This expected increase in capital expenditures is primarily due to the cost of construction and refurbishment  
of the DRI plant that we have relocated to Trinidad. Funds provided from operations, existing credit facilities and new borrowings 
are expected to be adequate to meet future capital expenditure and working capital requirements for existing operations. Nucor 
believes that it has the financial ability to borrow significant additional funds and still maintain reasonable leverage in order 
to finance major acquisitions.

In the steel mills segment, total steel production is anticipated to increase over the next several years from the record 
20,332,000 tons produced in 2005. Our current estimated annual capacity is approximately 25,000,000 tons, and additional 
capacity may be obtained through upgrading existing facilities as well as through acquisitions. We expect that demand in non-
residential construction will continue to strengthen throughout 2006 and that Nucor will continue to benefit from product line 
diversification. Although scrap prices remain at high levels, higher average selling prices, achieved through increased demand 
and the raw material surcharge, will continue to provide appropriate margins for our products. This surcharge will continue  
to ensure that we will be able to purchase the scrap needed to fill our customers’ needs.

Nucor continues to build market leadership positions in attractive downstream steel products businesses. We anticipate that  
the continued improvement in non-residential building will increase sales and the volume supplied by Vulcraft and Nucor 
Building Systems in 2006. Cold Finish sales will increase as additional capacity from our recent acquisition expands our 
presence in the midwest market and as our product line expands to include larger sizes and more leaded bars. 

We recognize that uncertainty in external factors such as raw materials costs, growth rate of the economy, the level of imports  
and consolidation in the industry will have a significant impact on our results. In 2006, we will continue working towards our  
goal of controlling approximately 6,000,000 to 7,000,000 tons of our supply of high-quality scrap substitutes. Our raw 
materials strategy is driven by Nucor’s ongoing expansion of our steel product portfolio into higher quality grades. We will 
continue our defense of fair trade and will continue to point out examples of unfair trade policies and practices until they  
are fixed. We will continue to pursue strategic acquisitions that expand our platform for generating earnings and attractive 
returns on our stockholders’ capital. While we cannot control these outside forces, Nucor will continue to be at the forefront  
of anticipating and addressing the issues that this uncertainty in external factors raises for us and other steel producers.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States  
of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at year end and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the year. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related 
to the valuation allowances for receivables; the carrying value of property, plant and equipment; reserves for environmental 
obligations; and income taxes. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values  
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Accordingly, actual costs could differ materially from 
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation  
of our consolidated financial statements.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION 
We recognize revenue when title passes to the customer, which is typically upon shipment.

ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 
We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required 
payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make 
payments, additional allowances may be required.

INVENTORIES 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of most inventories is measured on the LIFO method of accounting. 
The LIFO method allocates the most recent costs to cost of products sold, thereby recognizing into operating results fluctuations 
in raw material, energy and other capitalizable costs more quickly than other methods. The cost of other inventories is determined 
on the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

ASSET IMPAIRMENTS 
We evaluate the impairment of our property, plant and equipment on an individual asset basis or by logical groupings of assets. 
Asset impairments are recognized whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of those productive 
assets exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows. When it is determined that an impairment exists, the related assets  
are written down to estimated fair market value.

ENVIRONMENTAL REMEDIATION 
We are subject to environmental laws and regulations established by federal, state and local authorities, and we make provision  
for the estimated costs related to compliance. Undiscounted remediation liabilities are accrued based on estimates of known 
environmental exposures. The accruals are reviewed periodically and, as investigations and remediation proceed, adjustments  
are made as we believe are necessary. The accruals are not reduced by possible recoveries from insurance carriers or other third 
parties. Our measurement of environmental liabilities is based on currently available facts, present laws and regulations,  
and current technology.

INCOME TAXES 
We account for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting 
for Income Taxes.” We estimate our actual current tax expense and assess temporary differences that exist due to differing 
treatments of items for tax and financial statement purposes. These differences result in the recognition of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to taxable income  
in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets  
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the period in which the change is enacted. We assess the realizability  
of deferred tax assets on an ongoing basis by considering whether it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred  
tax assets will not be realized. If it is more likely than not, in our judgment, that the deferred tax assets will not be realized,  
we provide a valuation allowance.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) has issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment,” which requires  
all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements 
based on their fair values. As required by SFAS No. 123(R), Nucor will begin recognizing compensation costs in the Consolidated 
Statements of Earnings for all of the equity-based compensation plans in the first quarter of 2006. Compensation cost will  
be determined using the modified prospective method. Management believes the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)  
on our earnings will be comparable to the pro forma disclosures included in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements 
and does not expect the adoption to have a material impact on Nucor’s consolidated financial position. 

The FASB has issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” which clarifies that abnormal 
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage should be recognized as current period charges and 
requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.  
We are required to adopt the provisions of this statement in the first quarter of 2006. Management does not expect the adoption 
of SFAS No. 151 to have a material impact on Nucor’s consolidated financial position and results of operations. 
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	 2005	 2004	 2003	 2002	 2001	 2000

FOR THE YEAR

Net sales	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 $6,265,823	 $4,801,777	 $4,333,707	 $4,756,521

Costs, expenses and other:

   Cost of products sold	 10,085,396	 9,128,872	 5,996,547	 4,332,277	 3,914,278	 3,929,182

   Marketing, administrative	
      and other expenses	 493,560	 415,030	 165,369	 175,589	 150,666	 183,175

   Interest expense (income), net	 4,201	 22,352	 24,627	 14,286	 6,525	 (816)

   Minority interests	 110,674	 80,894	 23,950	 79,472	 103,069	 151,462

   Other income	 (9,200)	 (1,596)	 (11,547)	 (29,900)	 (20,200)	 —

	 10,684,631	 9,645,552	 6,198,946	 4,571,724	 4,154,338	 4,263,003
Earnings before	
   income taxes	 2,016,368	 1,731,276	 66,877	 230,053	 179,369	 493,518

Provision for income taxes	 706,084	 609,791	 4,096	 67,973	 66,408	 182,610

Net earnings	 1,310,284	 1,121,485	 62,781	 162,080	 112,961	 310,908

Net earnings per share:
   Basic	 8.34	 7.08	 0.40	 1.04	 0.73	 1.90
   Diluted	 8.26	 7.02	 0.40	 1.04	 0.73	 1.90

Dividends declared per share	 1.85	 0.47	 0.40	 0.38	 0.34	 0.30

Percentage of net
   earnings to net sales	 10.3%	 9.9%	 1.0%	 3.4%	 2.6%	 6.5%

Return on average equity	 33.9%	 38.7%	 2.7%	 7.2%	 5.2%	 14.2%

Capital expenditures	 331,466	 285,925	 215,408	 243,598	 261,146	 415,405

Depreciation	 375,054	 383,305	 364,112	 307,101	 289,063	 259,365

Sales per employee	 1,159	 1,107	 637	 528	 531	 619

AT YEAR END

Current assets	 $4,071,553	 $3,174,948	 $1,620,560	 $1,415,362	 $1,373,666	 $1,379,529

Current liabilities	 1,255,699	 1,065,790	 629,595	 591,536	 484,159	 558,068

Working capital	 2,815,854	 2,109,158	 990,965	 823,826	 889,507	 821,461

Cash provided by 
   operating activities	 2,136,615	 1,024,756	 493,801	 497,220	 495,115	 820,755

Current ratio	 3.2	 3.0	 2.6	 2.4	 2.8	 2.5

Property, plant and equipment	 2,855,717	 2,818,307	 2,817,135	 2,932,058	 2,365,655	 2,329,421

Total assets	 7,138,787	 6,133,207	 4,492,353	 4,381,001	 3,759,348	 3,710,868	

Long-term debt	 923,550	 923,550	 903,550	 894,550	 460,450	 460,450	

Percentage of debt to capital	 17.1%	 20.3%	 26.4%	 26.0%	 15.6%	 15.9%	

Stockholders’ equity	 4,279,788	 3,455,985	 2,342,077	 2,322,990	 2,201,461	 2,130,952

   Per share	 27.59	 21.67	 14.90	 14.86	 14.15	 13.73	

Shares outstanding	 155,110	 159,512	 157,180	 156,360	 155,630	 155,166

Stockholders	 120,000	 82,000	 61,000	 64,000	 47,000	 51,000

Employees	 11,300	 10,600	 9,900	 9,800	 8,400	 7,900

(dollar amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Six-year financial review
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Management ’s  Report on internal control over financial reporting

Nucor’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,  
as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. 
In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment, management concluded that Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting was effective  
as of December 31, 2005. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited 
management’s assessment of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as stated in their report, which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

March 7, 2006

To Stockholders and Board of Directors
Nucor Corporation:

We have completed integrated audits of Nucor Corporation’s 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements and of its 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, and an audit of its 2003 consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions on Nucor 
Corporation’s 2005, 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements and on its internal control over financial reporting  
as of December 31, 2005, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of earnings, 
stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Nucor Corporation  
and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits  
of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Management's Report and Report of independent  Registered public accounting firm
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Internal control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, 
the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management  
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness  
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal 
control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial 
reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures  
as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Charlotte, North Carolina

Report of independent  Registered public accounting firm
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

NET SALES	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 $6,265,823

COSTS, EXPENSES AND OTHER:

	 Cost of products sold	 10,085,396	 9,128,872	 5,996,547

	 Marketing, administrative and other expenses	 493,560	 415,030	 165,369

	 Interest expense, net (Note 12)	 4,201	 22,352	 24,627

	 Minority interests	 110,674	 80,894	 23,950

	 Other income (Note 13)	 (9,200)	 (1,596)	 (11,547)

			   10,684,631	 9,645,552	 6,198,946

EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES	 2,016,368	 1,731,276	 66,877

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (Note 14)	 706,084	 609,791	 4,096

NET EARNINGS	 $  1,310,284	 $   1,121,485	 $     62,781

NET EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 15):

	 Basic	 $8.34	 $7.08	 $0.40

	 Diluted	 $8.26	 $7.02	 $0.40

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated statements of earnings 
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Additional	
Paid-In	
Capital

Retained	
Earnings

unearned
compensation

Accumulated other 
comprehensive 
income (Loss)

Total 
Stockholders’ 

equity

Treasury Stock 
(at cost)

AmountShares

Common Stock

Shares Amount

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (in thousands, except per share data)

BALANCES, December 31, 2002	 90,679	 $36,272	 $  99,396		 $2,641,581		  $      —	 $       —		  12,499		 $(454,259)	 $2,322,990

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2003					    62,781						     62,781

Total comprehensive income														          62,781

Stock options	 388	 155	 16,273							     1	6,428

Employee stock compensation 
	 and service awards			   1,730						     (22)		 802	 2,532

Cash dividends ($0.40 per share)					    (62,654)									     (62,654)

BALANCES, December 31, 2003	 91,067	 36,427	 117,399		 2,641,708	 —		  —		  12,477		 (453,457)		 2,342,077

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2004					    1,121,485								     1,121,485
	 Net unrealized loss on hedging 
	     derivatives, net of income taxes							      (1,177)						    (1,177)

Total comprehensive income														         1,120,308

Stock options	 1,333	 533	 54,685										      55,218

Employee stock compensation 
	 and service awards			   11,915				   (592)		  (43)		  1,497		  12,820

Amortization of unearned compensation							      200						    200

2-for-1 stock split 	 91,983	 36,793	 (36,793)							     12,437			  —

Cash dividends ($0.47 per share)					    (74,638)								     (74,638)

BALANCES, December 31, 2004	 184,383	 73,753	 147,206		 3,688,555		  (392)		  (1,177)	 24,871		 (451,960)		 3,455,985

Comprehensive income: 
	 Net earnings in 2005					    1,310,284								     1,310,284
	 Net unrealized gain on hedging 
	     derivatives, net of income taxes							      55,842					   55,842
	 Reclassification adjustment for gain 
	     on settlement of hedging
	     derivatives included in net income,
	     net of income taxes							      (8,065)				  (8,065)

Total comprehensive income													         1,358,061

Stock options	 916	 367	 26,709										      27,076

Employee stock compensation 
	  and service awards			   17,935				   (5,095)			   (249)	 4,598		  17,438

Amortization of unearned compensation							      2,200						    2,200

Treasury stock acquired										        5,567		 (291,244)	 (	291,244)

Cash dividends ($1.85 per share)					    (289,728)									     (289,728) 

BALANCES, December 31, 2005	 185,299	 $74,120	 $191,850		 $4,709,111	 $(3,287)	 $46,600	 30,189	 $(738,606)	 	$4,279,788

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of stockholders' equity
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December 31,	 	 2005	 2004

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

	 Cash and short-term investments		  $1,837,510	 $   779,049

	 Accounts receivable, net (Note 2)		  1,000,629	 962,755

	 Inventories (Note 3)		  945,054	 1,239,888

	 Other current assets (Notes 9, 14 and 17)		  288,360	 193,256

	 	 Total current assets		  4,071,553	 3,174,948

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Note 4)		  2,855,717	 2,818,307

OTHER ASSETS (Notes 9 and 17)		  211,517	 139,952

TOTAL ASSETS		  $7,138,787	 $6,133,207

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

	 Long-term debt due within one year (Note 6)		    $       1,250	 $           —

	 Accounts payable (Note 5)		  501,624	 471,549

	 Federal income taxes payable		  —	 28,957

	 Salaries, wages and related accruals (Notes 7 and 11)		  368,568	 320,276

	 Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Notes 5 and 10)		  384,257	 245,008

	 	 Total current liabilities		  1,255,699	 1,065,790

LONG-TERM DEBT DUE AFTER ONE YEAR (Note 6)		  922,300	 923,550

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Notes 7, 9, 10, 11 and 14)		  486,910	 514,569

MINORITY INTERESTS		  194,090	 173,313

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 7):

	 Common stock		  74,120	 73,753

	 Additional paid-in capital		  191,850	 147,206

	 Retained earnings		  4,709,111	 3,688,555

	 Unearned compensation		  (3,287)	 (392)	

	 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes (Note 9)		  46,600	 (1,177)

	 	 	 	 5,018,394	 3,907,945

	 Treasury stock		  (738,606)	 (451,960)

	 Total stockholders’ equity		  4,279,788	 3,455,985

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY		  $7,138,787	 $6,133,207

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands)

Consolidated balance sheets
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Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

OPERATING ACTIVITIES	 	 	

Net earnings	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485	 $  62,781

Adjustments:			 

	 Depreciation	 375,054	 383,305	 364,112

	 Impairment of assets	 —	 13,200	 —

	 Deferred income taxes	 (29,379)	 6,693	 74,300

	 Minority interests	 110,663 	 80,892 	 23,942

	 Settlement of natural gas hedges	 12,365	 —	 —

	 Changes in (exclusive of acquisitions):

		  Accounts receivable	 (19,425)	 (354,897)	 (88,871)

 		  Inventories	 337,862	 (635,641)	 28,973

 		  Accounts payable	 17,259	 130,604	 82,634

 		  Federal income taxes	 (68,331)	 35,403	 (15,396)

 		  Salaries, wages and related accruals	 46,376	 228,203	 (25,060)

 		  Other	 43,887	 15,509  	 (13,614)

Cash provided by operating activities	 2,136,615	 1,024,756	 493,801

INVESTING ACTIVITIES	 	 	

Capital expenditures	 (331,466)	 (285,925)	 (215,408)

Investment in affiliates	 (41,903)	 (82,458)	 (22,125)

Disposition of plant and equipment	 752	 3,094	 11,634

Acquisitions (net of cash acquired)	 (154,864)	 (169,646)	 (34,941)

Other investing activities	 —	 —	 (6,742)

Cash used in investing activities	 (527,481)	 (534,935)	 (267,582)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES	

Proceeds from long-term debt	 —	 20,000	 25,000

Repayment of long-term debt	 —	 —	 (16,000)

Issuance of common stock	 40,209	 68,630	 18,961

Distributions to minority interests	 (89,886)	 (84,858)	 (63,318)

Cash dividends	 (209,752)	 (69,676)	 (61,835)

Acquisition of treasury stock	 (291,244)	 —	 —

Termination of interest rate swap agreement	 —	 4,800	 2,300

Cash used in financing activities	 (550,673)	 (61,104)	 (94,892) 

INCREASE IN CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS	 1,058,461	 428,717	 131,327

CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS–BEGINNING OF YEAR	  779,049	  350,332	  219,005

CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS–END OF YEAR	  $1,837,510	 $   779,049	 $350,332

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (in thousands)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005, 2004 AND 2003

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Nature of Operations Nucor is a domestic manufacturer of steel products whose customers are located primarily in the United 
States of America. 

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include Nucor and its controlled subsidiaries, including 
Nucor-Yamato Steel Company, a limited partnership of which Nucor owns 51%. Investments in joint ventures with ownership  
of 50% or less are accounted for under the equity method. All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated. 

Distributions are made to minority interest partners in Nucor-Yamato Steel Company in accordance with the limited partnership 
agreement by mutual agreement of the general partners. At a minimum, sufficient cash is distributed so that each partner may 
pay applicable U.S. federal and state income taxes payable.

Other assets includes $161.0 million at December 31, 2005 ($125.5 million at December 31, 2004) of equity investments  
in less than 50%-owned domestic and foreign affiliated companies. The results of these investments are included in marketing, 
administrative and other expenses and are immaterial for all periods presented.

Cash and Short-term Investments Short-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates 
market, and have original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash and short-term investments are 
maintained primarily with a few high-credit quality financial institutions.

Inventories Valuation Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally using the last-in, 
first-out (LIFO) method of accounting. Cost of other inventories is determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Repairs and maintenance for planned major maintenance activities are 
accrued on a pro-rata basis prior to the next scheduled major maintenance activity. All other repairs and maintenance activities 
are expensed when incurred. Impairments of long-lived assets are recognized whenever changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of those productive assets exceeds their projected undiscounted cash flows. When it is determined that  
an impairment exists, the related assets are written down to estimated fair market value.

Derivative Financial Instruments Nucor uses derivative financial instruments from time to time primarily to partially manage 
its exposure to price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process and to partially manage its exposure 
to changes in interest rates on outstanding debt instruments. Nucor, generally, does not enter into derivative instruments for 
any purpose other than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that will be purchased and 
processed in future periods and hedging the exposure related to changes in the fair value of outstanding fixed rate debt instruments.

Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognized when title passes to the customer, which is principally upon shipment. 

Freight Costs Internal fleet and some common carrier costs are included in marketing, administrative and other expenses. 
These costs included in marketing, administrative and other expenses were $67.1 million in 2005 ($55.6 million in 2004  
and $47.4 million in 2003). All other freight costs are included in cost of products sold.

Stock-Based Compensation Nucor accounts for its stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement 
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related 
Interpretations. Accordingly, no compensation expense is recorded, other than for restricted stock grants, since the exercise  
price of the stock options is equal to the market price of the underlying stock on the grant date. Had compensation cost  
for the stock options issued been determined consistent with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)  
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” net earnings and net earnings per share would have been  
reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

Notes to consolidated financial statements 
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Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

Net earnings – as reported	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485	 $62,781

Add: Stock-based employee 
	 compensation expense included  
	 in reported net earnings, 
	 net of income taxes	 12,717	 12,017	 362

Deduct: Total stock-based employee 
	 compensation expense determined 
	 under fair value based method for 
	 all awards, net of income taxes	 (21,305)	 (18,296)	 (7,738)

Net earnings – pro forma	 $1,301,696	 $1,115,206	 $55,405

Net earnings per share – as reported: 
	 Basic	 $8.34	 $7.08	 $0.40 
	 Diluted	 8.26	 7.02	 0.40

Net earnings per share – pro forma: 
	 Basic	 8.28	 7.04	 0.35 
	 Diluted	 8.21	 6.98	 0.35

(in thousands, except per share data)(in thousands, except per share data)

The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of options granted are evaluated and revised, as necessary, to reflect market 
conditions and experience.

Comprehensive Income (Loss) Nucor reports comprehensive income (loss) in its consolidated statement of stockholders’ 
equity. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting stockholders’ equity that, 
under United States generally accepted accounting principles, are excluded from net income, such as gains and losses related 
to certain derivative instruments, which are presented net of tax, and the translation effect of foreign currency assets and 
liabilities of non-U.S. entities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) has issued SFAS No. 123(R), 
“Share Based Payment,” which requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, 
to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values. As required by SFAS No. 123(R), Nucor will begin 
recognizing compensation costs in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings for all of the equity-based compensation plans  
in the first quarter of 2006. Compensation cost will be determined using the modified prospective method. Management 
believes the effect of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on our earnings will be comparable to the pro forma disclosures  
included under the discussion of Stock-Based Compensation, above, and does not expect the adoption to have a material  
impact on Nucor's consolidated financial position.

The FASB has issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” which clarifies that  
abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage should be recognized as current period charges 
and requires the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory based on the normal capacity of the production facilities.  
We are required to adopt the provisions of this statement in the first quarter of 2006. Management does not expect the  
adoption of SFAS No. 151 to have a material impact on Nucor's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported  
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Reclassifications Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

Notes to consolidated financial statements, continued 
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December 31,	 	 2005	 2004

Land and improvements		  $   146,471	 $   142,276
Buildings and improvements		  500,526	 478,157
Machinery and equipment		  5,183,241	 4,980,775
Construction in process and equipment deposits		  226,698	 92,411
		  6,056,936	 5,693,619
Less accumulated depreciation		  3,201,219	 2,875,312
		
		  $2,855,717	 $2,818,307

(in thousands)

Notes to consolidated financial statements, continued 

2. Accounts Receivable:

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers  
to make required payments. Accounts receivable are stated net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $39.2 million  
at December 31, 2005 ($40.4 million at December 31, 2004 and $22.7 million at December 31, 2003).

3. Inventories:

Inventories consist of approximately 50% raw materials and supplies and 50% finished and semi-finished products at December 
31, 2005 (55% and 45%, respectively, at December 31, 2004). Nucor’s manufacturing operations consist of a continuous, 
vertically integrated process from which products are sold to customers at various stages. Since most steel products can  
be classified as either finished or semi-finished products, these two categories of inventory are combined. 

Inventories valued using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method of accounting represent approximately 68% of total inventories  
at December 31, 2005 (78% at December 31, 2004). If the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method of accounting had been used, 
inventories would have been $381.9 million higher at December 31, 2005 ($533.5 million higher at December 31, 2004). Use  
of the lower of cost or market reduced inventories by $1.2 million at December 31, 2005 ($2.4 million at December 31, 2004).

Nucor has entered into supply agreements for certain raw materials, utilities and other items in the ordinary course of business. 
These agreements extend into 2028 and total approximately $3.7 billion at December 31, 2005. 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment: 

The estimated useful lives range from 10 to 20 years for buildings and land improvements and range from 3 to 12 years  
for machinery and equipment.

5. current liabilities:

Drafts payable, included in accounts payable in the balance sheet, was $76.3 million at December 31, 2005 ($91.6 million  
at December 31, 2004).

Dividends payable, included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the balance sheet, was $100.9 million  
at December 31, 2005 ($20.9 million at December 31, 2004).
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Notes to consolidated financial statements, continued 

(in thousands)

December 31,	 	 2005	 2004

Industrial revenue bonds:
   3.30% to 3.71%, variable, due from 2006 to 2038		  $398,550	 $398,550
Notes, 6%, due 2009		  175,000	 175,000
Notes, 4.875%, due 2012		  350,000	 350,000
		  923,550	 923,550
Less current maturities		  (1,250)	 —
		  $922,300	 $923,550

6. Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements:

In 2005, Nucor entered into a new five-year unsecured revolving credit facility maturing in June 2010 that provides  
for up to $700.0 million in revolving loans. Up to the equivalent of $600.0 million of the new credit facility is available for 
foreign currency loans, and up to $450.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit. The new credit facility may  
be increased by up to $300.0 million at the election of the Company in accordance with the terms set forth in the credit agreement. 
No borrowings were outstanding under the credit facility as of December 31, 2005. The new credit facility provides for grid-based 
interest pricing based upon the credit rating of Nucor’s senior unsecured long-term debt and, alternatively, interest rates quoted  
by lenders in connection with competitive bidding. The credit facility includes customary financial and other covenants, including  
a limit on the ratio of debt to total capital of 60%, a limit on Nucor’s ability to pledge the Company’s assets, and a limit  
on consolidations, mergers and sales of assets.

In connection with the new credit facility, in June 2005, Nucor terminated (a) a $125.0 million 364-day revolver that was scheduled 
to mature in September 2005, and (b) a $300.0 million multi-currency revolver that was scheduled to mature in October 2007.  
At the date of termination, there were no borrowings under either terminated credit facility.

Annual aggregate long-term debt maturities are: $1.3 million in 2006; none in 2007; none in 2008; $180.4 million in 2009;  
and none in 2010.

The fair value of Nucor’s long-term debt approximates the carrying value.
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Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

Expected dividend yield	 0.98% – 1.04%	 1.30% – 1.32%	 1.56% – 1.92%
Expected stock price volatility	 38.42% – 38.43%	 29.18% – 31.08%	 43.37% – 46.51%
Risk-free interest rate	 3.76% – 3.80%	 2.15% – 2.74%	 1.91% – 2.62%
Expected life of options (in years)	 3.5	 3.5	 3.5

	 	

	 $18.01 –  $32.00	 808	 3.6 years	 $24.35	 	 808	 $24.35
	 32.01 –    46.00	 621	 5.4 years	 36.21	 	 621	 36.21
	  46.01 –    60.00	 402	 6.6 years	 57.72	 	 —	 —
	  60.01 –    61.46	 352	 6.1 years	 61.46	 352	 61.46	
 	 18.01 –    61.46	 2,183	 5.1 years	 39.86	 1,781	 35.83

Number Outstanding
Weighted

Average Remaining 	
Contractual Life

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Number Exercisable
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 

Year Ended December 31,	 	

Number of shares under option:	
   Outstanding at beginning of year	  2,336 	 $29.37 	  3,424 	 $24.04 	  2,492 	 $23.92 
   Granted	  776 	  59.51 	  1,184 	  35.64 	  1,741 	 23.01 
   Exercised	  (916)	  29.55 	  (2,250)	  24.55 	  (776)	 21.28 
   Canceled	  (13)	 54.42 	  (22)	 31.27 	  (33)	 24.90 
   Outstanding at end of year	 2,183 	 $39.86 	  2,336 	 $29.37 	  3,424 	 $24.04 
 	
Options exercisable at end of year 	 1,781 	 $35.83 	  1,787 	 $26.29 	  2,646 	 $23.57
 
Shares reserved for future grants 	 9,534 	 	 10,298 		  11,460	  

Shares
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price
Shares

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price

Shares
Weighted Average 

Exercise Price

2005 2004 2003

7. Capital Stock:

The par value of Nucor’s common stock is $0.40 per share and there are 400.0 million shares authorized. In addition, 250,000 
shares of preferred stock, par value of $4.00 per share, are authorized, with preferences, rights and restrictions as may be fixed  
by Nucor’s Board of Directors. There are no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Stock Options Nucor’s stock option plans provide that common stock options may be granted to key employees, officers and non-
employee directors with exercise prices at 100% of the market value on the date of the grant. Outstanding options are exercisable 
six months after grant date and have a term of seven years. 

A summary of Nucor’s stock option plans is as follows (shares in thousands):

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 (shares in thousands):

The pro forma net earnings and pro forma net earnings per share amounts calculated according to SFAS No. 123 are disclosed 
in Note 1, above. The weighted-average per share fair value of options granted was $18.15 in 2005 ($8.09 in 2004 and $7.19 
in 2003). The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model 
with the following assumptions:
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Restricted Stock Awards Nucor’s Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan (the “AIP”) and Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP”) 
authorize the award of shares of common stock to officers subject to certain conditions and restrictions. The LTIP provides for 
the award of shares of restricted common stock at the end of each LTIP performance measurement period at no cost to officers  
if certain financial performance goals are met during the period. One-third of the LTIP restricted stock award vests upon each  
of the first three anniversaries of the award date or, if earlier, upon the officer’s attainment of age 55 while employed by Nucor. 
Although participants are entitled to cash dividends and may vote such awarded shares, the sale or transfer of such shares  
is limited during the restricted period. 

The AIP provides for the payment of annual cash incentive awards. An AIP participant may elect, however, to defer payment  
of up to one-half of an annual incentive award. In such event, the deferred AIP award is converted into common stock units and 
credited with a deferral incentive, in the form of additional common stock units, equal to 25% of the number of common stock 
units attributable to the deferred AIP award. Common stock units attributable to deferred AIP awards are fully vested. Common 
stock units credited as a deferral incentive vest upon the AIP participant’s attainment of age 55 while employed by Nucor. 
Vested common stock units are paid to AIP participants in the form of shares of common stock following their termination  
of employment with Nucor.

Compensation expense for common stock and common stock units awarded under the AIP and LTIP is recorded over the 
performance measurement and vesting periods based on the anticipated number and market value of shares of common 
stock and common stock units to be awarded. Compensation expense for anticipated awards based upon Nucor’s financial 
performance, exclusive of amounts payable in cash, was $16.8 million in 2005, $18.5 million in 2004 and $1.5 million  
in 2003, the year in which the AIP and LTIP were approved by the stockholders. Unearned compensation on restricted stock  
is recorded in a separate component of stockholders’ equity and is amortized to compensation expense over the vesting period. 

A summary of Nucor’s restricted stock is as follows (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,	 	

Restricted stock awards and units:	
   Unvested at beginning of year	  38 	 $28.05 	  —	 $     — 		   
   Granted	  292	  57.65 	  52 	 28.05 
   Vested	  (126)	  53.58 	  (14)	 28.05		   
   Canceled 	 —	 — 	  —	 —		   
   Unvested at end of year	 204 	 $54.65 	 38 	 $28.05		   
	
Shares reserved for future grants 	 1,656	 	 1,948 		  2,000	  

Shares
Weighted 

Average Price
Shares

Weighted 
Average Price

Shares

2005 2004 2003

Notes to consolidated financial statements, continued 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements, continued 

8. STOCKholder Rights Plan:

In 2001, the Board of Directors adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan (“Plan”) in which one right (“Right”) was declared  
as a dividend for each Nucor common share outstanding. Each Right entitles Nucor common stockholders to purchase, under 
certain conditions, one five-thousandth of a share of newly authorized Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock (“Preferred 
Stock”), with one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock intended to be the economic equivalent of one share of Nucor 
common stock. Until the occurrence of certain events, the Rights are represented by and traded in tandem with Nucor common 
stock. Rights will be exercisable only if a person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Nucor common 
shares or commences a tender or exchange offer, upon the consummation of which such person or group would beneficially 
own 15% or more of the common shares. Upon such an event, the Rights enable dilution of the acquiring person’s or group’s 
interest by providing that other holders of Nucor common stock may purchase, at an exercise price of $75.00, Nucor common 
stock, or in the discretion of the Board of Directors, Preferred Stock, having double the value of such exercise price. Nucor  
will be entitled to redeem the Rights at $.0005 per Right under certain circumstances set forth in the Plan. The Rights 
themselves have no voting power and will expire on March 8, 2011, unless earlier exercised, redeemed or exchanged. Each  
one five-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock has the same voting rights as one share of Nucor common stock, and  
each share of Preferred Stock has 5,000 times the voting power of one share of Nucor common stock. 

9. Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments:

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No.138, 
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities,” and SFAS 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 
on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” Nucor recognizes all derivative instruments, such as natural gas forward 
purchase contracts and interest rate swaps, in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Amounts included in accumulated 
other comprehensive income related to cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings when the related derivative instruments 
settle. Changes in fair-value hedges are reported currently in earnings along with changes in the fair value of the hedged items. 
When cash flow and fair value hedges affect net earnings, they are included on the same line as the underlying transaction  
(cost of products sold or interest expense). 

During 2005, accumulated other comprehensive income increased by $55.8 million, net of deferred taxes of $30.0 million,  
due to unrealized gains on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts. The remaining change in accumulated 
other comprehensive income was due to the reclassification of net gains of approximately $8.1 million, net of deferred taxes  
of approximately $4.3 million, into earnings due to the settlement of transactions. During 2004, accumulated other 
comprehensive loss increased by $1.2 million, net of taxes of $0.6 million, due to unrealized losses on cash flow hedges  
on natural gas forward purchase contracts issued during the year. 

Of the total $71.7 million fair value of cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts at December 31, 2005, 
$53.6 million is included in other current assets and $18.1 million is included in other assets. At December 31, 2004,  
$1.8 million was included in deferred credits and other liabilities. At December 31, 2005, $34.8 million of net deferred gains  
on cash flow hedges on natural gas forward purchase contracts included in accumulated other comprehensive income are 
expected to be reclassified into earnings, due to the settlement of forecasted transactions, during the next twelve months 
assuming no change in the forward commodity prices from December 31, 2005. Nucor is hedging a portion of its exposure  
to the variability of future cash flows for forecasted natural gas purchases over various time periods not exceeding two years.

Nucor has also entered into various natural gas purchase contracts, which meet the normal purchase normal sale exclusion  
under SFAS No. 133. These instruments effectively commit Nucor to purchase $17.6 million, $22.7 million and $21.5 million  
of natural gas for production in 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, and $562.3 million between 2009 and 2028. These 
natural gas purchase contracts will primarily supply our direct reduced iron facility in Trinidad. 

During 2004, Nucor entered into, and subsequently terminated, an interest rate swap agreement of $175.0 million that was 
accounted for as a fair value hedge. Under the agreement, Nucor paid a variable rate of interest and received a fixed rate  
of interest over the term of the interest rate swap agreement. The interest rate swap agreement converted the $175.0 million 
note payable from a 6% fixed rate obligation to a variable rate obligation. The change in the fair value of this agreement was 
recorded in earnings as an equal offset to the change in fair value of the underlying debt obligation. Since the fair value hedge 
was 100% effective, there was no impact to net earnings. The variable interest rate was the six-month LIBOR rate in arrears  
plus 1.25%. Nucor terminated this interest rate swap agreement in 2004, resulting in a gain of $4.8 million. 
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Year Ended December 31,	  2005	 2004	 2003

Taxes computed at statutory rate	 35.00%	 35.00%		 35.00%
State income taxes, net of
   federal income tax benefit	 1.57				  1.07		  (8.65)
Resolution of prior year contingencies	 —				  (0.65)		  (15.93)
Federal research credit	 (0.07)		  (0.12)		  (4.07)
Domestic manufacturing deduction	 (1.04)	 	 —		  —
Other, net	 (0.44)		  (0.08)		  (0.23)

Provision for income taxes	 35.02%	 35.22%		 6.12%

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

Current:
	 Federal	 $685,479	 $574,107		  $(58,500)
	 State	 49,984	 28,991		  (11,704)
		  Total current	 735,463	 603,098		  (70,204)

Deferred:	
	 Federal	 (28,179)	 7,193	 71,500
	 State	 (1,200)	 (500)	 2,800
		  Total deferred	 (29,379)	 6,693	 74,300

Total provision for income taxes	 $706,084	 $609,791	 $   4,096

Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 

December 31,	 2005	 2004

Deferred tax assets:
    Accrued liabilities and reserves	 $   85,629	 $ 108,777
    Allowance for doubtful accounts	 12,142	 12,816
    Inventory	 137,587	 105,737
    Post retirement benefits	 18,753	 17,224
       Total deferred tax assets	 254,111	 244,554

Deferred tax liabilities:
    Natural gas hedges	 (25,541)	 (600)
    Property, plant and equipment	 (370,170)	 (390,754)
       Total deferred tax liabilities	 (395,711)	 (391,354)

Total net deferred tax liabilities	 $(141,600)	 $(146,800)

14. Income taxes:

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate (35%) to the total provision is as follows:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the following (in thousands):
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Current deferred tax assets were $153.0 million at December 31, 2005 ($163.0 million at December 31, 2004). Non-current 
deferred tax liabilities were $294.6 million at December 31, 2005 ($309.8 million at December 31, 2004). Nucor paid $806.7 
million and $550.1 million in net federal and state income taxes in 2005 and 2004, respectively, and received $54.9 million 
in refunds in 2003. The Internal Revenue Service is currently examining Nucor’s 2002 and 2003 federal income tax returns. 
Management believes that it has adequately provided for any adjustments that may arise from this audit.

15. earnings per share:

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003	

Basic earnings per share:
    Basic net earnings	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485	 $62,781

    Average shares outstanding	 157,128	 158,383	 156,531

    Basic net earnings per share	 $8.34	 $7.08	 $0.40

Diluted earnings per share:
    Diluted net earnings	 $1,310,284	 $1,121,485	 $62,781

    Diluted average shares outstanding:
       Basic shares outstanding	 157,128	 158,383	 156,531
       Dilutive effect of stock options 
          and other	 1,437	 1,371	 302
	 158,565	 159,754	 156,833

    Diluted net earnings per share	 $8.26	 $7.02	 $0.40

Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 

Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003	

Net sales to external customers:
    Steel mills	 $11,063,681	 $10,109,430	 $5,446,127
    Steel products	 1,637,318	 1,267,398	 819,696
	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 $6,265,823

Intercompany sales:
    Steel mills	 $     896,432	 $     852,897	 $   520,207
    Steel products	 36,246	 9,857	 5,275
    Corporate/eliminations/other	 (932,678)	 (862,754)	 (525,482)
	 $              —	 $              —	 $            —

Depreciation expense:
    Steel mills	 $     355,887	 $     366,023	 $   346,136
    Steel products	 19,167	 17,282	 17,976
	 $     375,054	 $     383,305	 $   364,112

Earnings (loss) before income taxes:
    Steel mills	 $  2,207,621	 $   2,191,335	 $   209,400
    Steel products	 180,756	 149,610	 (14,328)
    Corporate/eliminations/other	 (372,009)	 (609,669)	 (128,195)
	 $  2,016,368	 $ 1,731,276	 $     66,877

Segment assets:
    Steel mills	 $ 4,623,462	 $  4,978,616	 $3,927,392
    Steel products	  519,562	 488,571	 324,235
    Corporate/eliminations/other	  1,995,763	 666,020	 240,726
	 $  7,138,787	 $   6,133,207	 $4,492,353

Capital expenditures:
    Steel mills	 $     216,047	 $      242,486	 $   201,134
    Steel products	 18,378	 7,253	 14,274
     Corporate/other	 97,041	 36,186	 —
	 $     331,466	 $       285,925	 $   215,408

16. Segments:

Nucor reports its results in two segments: steel mills and steel products. The steel mills segment includes carbon and alloy steel 
in sheet, bar, structural and plate. The steel products segment includes steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, cold finished 
steel, steel fasteners, metal building systems and light gauge steel framing. The segments are consistent with the way Nucor 
manages its business, which is primarily based upon the similarity of the types of products produced and sold by each segment.

Management evaluates the operating performance of each of its segments based upon division contribution. The accounting 
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies. Nucor 
accounts for intercompany sales at prices approximating current market value. Interest expense, minority interests, other income, 
profit sharing expense and changes in the LIFO reserve and environmental accruals are shown under Corporate/eliminations/other. 
Corporate assets primarily include cash and short-term investments, deferred income tax assets and investments in affiliates. 

Nucor’s segment results are as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31,	 2005	 2004	 2003

Net sales to external customers:
   Sheet	 $  4,805,391	 $  4,856,469	 $2,371,611
   Bar	 3,061,326	 2,632,966	 1,746,805
   Structural	 1,702,720	 1,500,878	 1,005,859
   Plate	 1,494,244	 1,119,117	 321,852
   Steel products	 1,637,318	 1,267,398	 819,696
	 $12,700,999	 $11,376,828	 $6,265,823

Net sales by product were as follows (in thousands). Further product group breakdown is impracticable.

17. Investments and acquisitions:

In January 2005, Nucor entered into an agreement with Ambassador Steel Corporation to form Nufab Rebar LLC (“Nufab”),  
a rebar fabrication joint venture. Nucor owns 49% of the joint venture. At December 31, 2005, Nucor held a note receivable 
from Nufab in the amount of $6.9 million. This note receivable bears interest, payable quarterly, at a rate of LIBOR plus 120 
basis points. The note was classified in other assets.

In February 2005, Nucor purchased the assets of Fort Howard Steel, Inc.’s operations in Oak Creek, Wisconsin, for a cash 
purchase price of approximately $44.1 million. This facility produces cold finish bar products.

In June 2005, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Marion, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets of Marion Steel  
Company for a cash purchase price of approximately $110.7 million. This facility produces angles, flats, rebar, rounds and signposts.

These acquisitions in 2005 were not material to the consolidated financial statements and did not result in material goodwill  
or other intangible assets.

In February 2004, Nucor purchased a one-half interest in Harris Steel, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Harris Steel Group, Inc., 
for a cash purchase price of approximately $21.0 million. At December 31, 2005, Nucor held a note receivable from Harris 
Steel, Inc. in the amount of $10.0 million. This note receivable bears interest, payable upon maturity, at a rate of LIBOR plus 
100 basis points. The note was classified in other current assets. In 2005, Harris Steel Group received an additional $1.2 million 
based upon the achievement of certain operating results. Harris Steel Group may receive up to an additional $4.8 million upon 
the achievement of certain operating results of the venture through 2008. 

In July 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Tuscaloosa, Inc., purchased substantially all of the steelmaking 
assets of Corus Tuscaloosa for a price of approximately $89.4 million. The facility is a coiled plate mill that manufactures 
pressure vessel steel coil, discrete plate and cut-to-length plate products.

In August 2004, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC, purchased certain assets of Worthington 
Industries, Inc. cold rolling mill in Decatur, Alabama, for a cash purchase price of approximately $80.3 million. The assets 
include all of the buildings, the pickle line, four-stand tandem cold mill, temper mill and annealing furnaces adjacent to the 
current Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC steel plant. 

In March 2003, Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nucor Steel Kingman, LLC, purchased substantially all of the assets  
of the Kingman, Arizona, steel facility of North Star Steel (“North Star”) for approximately $35.0 million. The purchase price  
did not include working capital and Nucor assumed no material liabilities of the North Star operation. Nucor Steel Kingman  
is currently not operating. After evaluating options for this facility, Nucor decided not to restart the melt shop. Accordingly,  
in 2004 Nucor recognized an impairment charge of $13.2 million based on appraised values. This charge has been reflected  
in cost of products sold. 

Non-cash investing and financing activities included the assumption of $17.8 million of liabilities acquired with the purchase  
of Fort Howard Steel, Inc. and Marion Steel Company in 2005 and included the assumption of $27.2 million of liabilities 
acquired with the purchase of Corus Tuscaloosa in 2004.

Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 
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At December 31, 2005, there was an aggregate credit of $4.7 million related to this and previous interest rate swaps included 	
in deferred credits and other liabilities in the balance sheet, all of which will be amortized over the remaining life of the debt 	
as adjustments to interest expense.

Nucor does not anticipate non-performance by the counterparties in any of these derivative instruments given their high credit 
ratings, and no material loss is expected from non-performance by any one of such counterparties.

10. Contingencies:

Nucor is subject to environmental laws and regulations established by federal, state and local authorities, and, accordingly, 	
makes provision for the estimated costs of compliance. Of the undiscounted total $24.0 million of accrued environmental costs 	
at December 31, 2005 ($44.7 million at December 31, 2004), $20.0 million was classified in accrued expenses and other 
current liabilities ($22.2 million at December 31, 2004) and $4.0 million was classified in deferred credits and other liabilities 
($22.5 million at December 31, 2004). Inherent uncertainties exist in these estimates primarily due to unknown conditions, 
evolving remediation technology, and changing governmental regulations and legal standards regarding liability. During 2005 Nucor 
revised estimates as additional information was obtained and projects were completed, reducing environmental reserves by $9.4 
million ($10.0 million in 2004 and $8.3 million in 2003). The revisions are included in cost of products sold. In December 
2000, the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Department of Justice announced an agreement with Nucor 
and certain states that resolved alleged violations of environmental laws and regulations. Nucor continues to implement the 
various components of the consent decree, which involve air and water pollution control technology demonstrations along with 
other environmental management practices. The accrued environmental costs include the expenses that Nucor expects to incur 	
as a result of the consent decree.

Other contingent liabilities with respect to product warranties, legal proceedings and other matters arise in the normal course 	
of business. In the opinion of management, no such matters exist that would have a material effect on the consolidated 	
financial statements.

11. employee benefit plans:

Nucor makes contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees based on the profitability 	
of the company. Nucor’s expense for these benefits totaled $206.0 million in 2005 ($172.3 million in 2004 and $8.9 million 	
in 2003). The related liability for these benefits is included in salaries, wages and related accruals at each year-end. Nucor 
also has a medical plan covering certain eligible early retirees. The unfunded obligation, included in deferred credits and other 
liabilities in the balance sheet, totaled $48.0 million at December 31, 2005 ($44.2 million at December 31, 2004). Expense 
associated with this plan totaled $2.9 million in 2005 ($3.0 million in 2004 and $2.3 million in 2003). The discount rate used 
was 5.50% in 2005 (5.75% in 2004 and 6% in 2003). The health care cost increase trend rate used was 9% in 2005 (10% 	
in 2004 and 11% in 2003). The health care cost increase in the trend rate is projected to decline gradually to 5% by 2011.

12. interest expense:

Interest expense is stated net of interest income of $32.4 million in 2005 ($7.0 million in 2004 and $2.5 million in 2003). 
Interest paid was $37.2 million in 2005 ($32.4 million in 2004 and $33.0 million in 2003). 

13. other income:

In 2005, Nucor received $9.2 million in settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters. Nucor 	
has made claims for reimbursement of additional amounts. No amounts have been recorded for such reimbursements, if any, 
that may be received. In 2004 and 2003, Nucor sold equipment resulting in a pre-tax gain of $1.6 million and $4.4 million, 
respectively. In 2003, Nucor also recognized $7.1 million related to graphite electrodes anti-trust settlements.

Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements, CONTINUED 

18. quarterly information (unaudited):

       2005
      Net sales	 $3,322,621	 $3,145,003	 $3,025,911	 $3,207,464
      Gross margin(1)	 701,993	 624,911	 590,635	 698,064
      Net earnings (2)	 354,666	 322,707	 291,877	 341,034
      Net earnings per share:
          Basic	 2.22	 2.04	 1.87	 2.20
          Diluted	 2.20	 2.03	 1.86	 2.18

       2004
      Net sales	 $2,286,416	 $2,761,822	 $3,239,592	 $3,088,998
      Gross margin(3)	 270,047	 527,906	 806,074	 643,929
      Net earnings (4)	 113,238	 251,442	 415,387	 341,418
      Net earnings per share:
          Basic	 0.72	 1.59	 2.62	 2.14
          Diluted	 0.72	 1.58	 2.59	 2.12

Fourth QuarterFirst Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter
(in thousands, except per share data)

(1)	LIFO credits totaled $26.1 million, $69.9 million, $52.0 million and $3.6 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarters  
     of 2005, respectively.

(2)	The first quarter of 2005 includes $9.2 million for the settlement of claims against third parties related to environmental matters.

(3)	LIFO charges totaled $32.2 million, $67.1 million, $124.1 million and $152.5 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarters  
     of 2004, respectively.

(4)	The first quarter of 2004 includes a gain of $1.6 million on the sale of equipment.
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(3)	LIFO charges totaled $32.2 million, $67.1 million, $124.1 million and $152.5 million in the first, second, third and fourth quarters  
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(4)	The first quarter of 2004 includes a gain of $1.6 million on the sale of equipment.
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